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Finance Department

City of Marshfield

City Hall Plaza

630 S. Central Avenue

Marshfield, Wisconsin 54449-0727

" Keith R. Strey, CPA
Finance Director
Telephone (715) 387-3033
Fax (715) 384-9310
Email:keiths @ci.marshfield. wi.us

Aprit 1, 2005

To the Honorable Mayor, members of the Common Council and the Citizens of the Gity of Marshfield:

The comprehensive annual financial report of the City of Marshfield for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004, is hereby submitied,
This report consists of management's representations conceming the finances of the City of Marshfield. Consequently, management
assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of all of the.information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable
basis for making these representations, management of the City of Marshfield has established a comprehensive internal control
framework. Itis designed both to protect the government's assets from loss, theft or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable information
for the preparation of financial statements in conformance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). This comprehensive -
framework of internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the financial statements wil
be free from material misstatement because the cost of internal controls should not exceed their benefits.” As management, we assert that,
_ 1o the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and reliable in all material respects.

Hawkins, Ash, Baptie & Company, LLP, a firm of licensed certified public accountants has audited the City of Marshfield's financial
statements. The goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements of the city for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2004 are free of material misstalement. The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management; and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The independent auditor concluded, based upon the
audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unqualified opinion that the City of Marshfield's financial statements for the fiscal

year ended December 31, 2004, are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP. The independent auditor's report is presented as the first
component of the financial section of this report.

. GAAP requires that management prbvide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in
the form of Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to compiement MD&A and should be
read in conjunction with it. The City of Marshfield’s MD&A can be found immediately following the report of the independent auditors.

Profile of the Government

The City of Marshfield was incorporated in 1883, under the provisions of Chapter 280, Léws of Wisconsin, 1883. Marshfield is one of four
major cities in the Central Wisconsin area, being located in the exact center of the state. Hence, Marshfield is known as the "City in the

Center". The city currently has a land area of 13.4 square miles. Itis a city rich in Wisconsin lore, with lumbering, rich farmlands and
railroading dominating its earlier history. : :

An elected Mayor.and Common Council under a mayor-councit form of government govern the City. Common Council members serve
two-year staggered terms, with five members elected every year. The Mayor is elected to serve a two-year term. All ten of the Common
Council members are elected by district and the Mayor elected at large. The Common Council meets in regular session twice monthly and
performs the legislative and policy- making functions of city government. By statute, the Mayor presides at Council meetings and serves as

the Chief Elected Officer. Since 1989, administrative functions of city government have been de!egated toa Ctty Administrator who is hired
by and reports fo the Mayer and Common Council,




Under an organizational plan approved in 1989, the City Administrator is regponsible for certain departments including Finance,
information Technology, Public Works, Parks and Recreation, and Planning and Economic Development. The City Administrator annually
prepares and presents an executive budget recommendation to the Mayor and Common Council. In 1990, a 5-year Capital improvement
Program (CIP) policy statement was adopted by the Gommon Council and a 5-year Capital improvement Program has been subsequently
adopted every year.

With an estimated 2004 population of 19,012, the city has seen a slight decline in population and significant growth in its tax base over the
past decade. In the 1990 publication, The Rating Guide To Life In America’s Small Cities, Marshfield was ranked 14th in America, 3rd in
the Midwest and 1st in Wisconsin for its quality of life. Each community was graded on its performance in ten clearly defined
classifications: Climate/Environment, Diversions, Economics, Educaticn, Sophistication, Health Care, Housing, Public Safety,
Transportation and Urban Proximity. In addition, Marshfield was recently named as the 8 best place io live in America by Demographics
Daily.

The city employs 199 full-time equivaleni employees. The police department has 38 officers and 15 staff employees. The Marshfield Fire
and Rescue Depariment that employs 33 firefighters and one staff employee provide fire protection. The fire insurance rating is class 4.

The city provides a full range of services including palice and fire protection; sanitation services; construction and maintenance of
highways, streets and other infrastructure; planning and economic development; and library, recreational activities and cultural events.
Also included are acfivities of the Board of Water and Light Commissioners, Fire and Police Commission, Library Board, and smalier
boards and commissions over which the Common Council exercises, or has the ability fo exercise direct administrative authority and/or
responsibility.

The annual budget serves as the foundation for the City of Marshfield's financial pianning and confrol. Al departments of the City of
Marshfield are required to submit budget requests for the following fiscal year to the Finance Department by the first Friday of August. The
Finance Department performs a technical review of all requests and then compiles and prepares the initial budget as a starting point for the
City Administrator by the last week of August. The first full week of September, the City Administrator and Finance Director hold budget
hearings with Departments fo review budgef requests with Deparfment heads. The City Administrator then prepares and presenis a
proposed budget to the Common Council at the first regular Common Council meeting in October.

A series of three special budget work sessions of the Comman Council are held to review the Administrator’s recommended budget prior fo
publication of the Commaon Council proposed budget. The Council is required to hold a public hearing on the proposed budget and adopts
a final budget by the last Common Councit meefing in November. The budget is prepared by fund, function (e.g., public safety), and
deparfment (e.g., police). Department heads may make fransfers of appropriations within a depariment with the exception of capital
outlay. Transfers of appropriations between departments or capital outlay, however, require the special approval of the Common Council.
Budget-to-actual comparisons are provided in this report for each individual governmental fund for which an appropriated annual budget
has been adopied.

Factors Affecting Financial Condition

The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when it is considered from the broader perspective of the
specific environment within which the City of Marshfield operates.

Economic Condition and Qutlook: The Marshfield family of industries is best described as diversified with 63 manufacturing firms
employing 6,100 employees, 13 industrial distribution firms employing 750, 4 transport firms employing 2,300, 26 ufility, communication,
and printing firms employing 415, and medical service firms employing 6,280.

The Marshfield Clinic, founded in 1916, is Wisconsin's most comprehensive health care system with 730 physicians and medical
specialists, serving patients in Marshfield and 40 regional centers throughout cenfral, western, eastern and northern Wisconsin. Marshfield
Clinic system employs over 5,600 (exclusive of physicians).




Saint Joseph's Hospital, a 500-plus bed fertiary care teaching institution which adjoins the Clinic, is one of the largest rural referral medical
centers in Wisconsin, and the only verified trauma center in the north central part of the state. It provides health care, including all major
medical and surgical specialties and subspecialties, to a service area including Wisconsin and Upper Michigan. Among Saint Joseph's
specialfies are oncology and cardiac services.

Marshfield Clinic Research Foundation has grown into the largest private medical research institute in the state and among the largest in
the nation. Over 500 clinical trials and other research projects are active in the system at any fime. These studies provide knowledge to
the medical community across the United States and around the world.

Marshfield Laboratories, a joint venture of Saint Joseph's Hospital and Marshfield Clinic, is the state's largest medical laboratory with over
20 million test results reported annually. The laboratory employs over 450 pecple and has established separate service lines for forensic
toxicology, food safety and veterinary medicine. Marshfield Laboratories serves clients across the nation.

In addition to Marshfield being a major medical service center, the focus of the manufactured housing industry in the state, and the home
for manufactured wood products, the city is also a strong metalworking and machinery center, especially stainless steel products.
Marshfield is known for its dairy food processing, most notably for its cheese. One unique business is Figi's Inc., a mail order cheese,
sausage, gift firm which employs over 3,000 during the October-December peak gift period.

The Marshfield-Wood County area economy experienced minimal improvement over the past twelve months due, in large part, to problems
associated with the paper indusiry in south Waood County. Total Wood Couniy unemployment rate decreased 7.8% in 2604 from 5.3% to
4.9%. This corresponds to what is occurring in the region, state and nation as a whole. The total number of unemployment claims in
Wood County decreased significantly from 1,670 claims in 2003 to 1,247 claims in 2004, a decrease of 25.3%. Total Wood County
employment decreased slightly with an estimated reduction of 0.4%. Sectors experiencing employment growth were Transportation &
Utilities, Education & Health Services, Leisure & Hospitality and Information Business Services. The sectors experiencing reductions in
2004 were Manufacturing, Trade and Government.

Marshfield's businesses continued to grow in 2004 with the addition of 12 new commercial and industrial buildings valued at $7,533,422.
Additionally, 108 businesses remedeled and/or expanded existing facilities valued at $6,669,340. The city experienced a decrease in
residential housing starts from 64 in 2003 to 59 in 2004 valued at $14,736,631.

The city is positioned to experience increased development as improvements are made to State Highway 13 on the north end of the city in
2004, completion of the new Veteran's Parkway (Marshfield Boulevard) in 2003, completion of infrastructure construction in Mill Creek
Business Park in 2003, future development of Yellowstone Industrial Park planned for 2008 through 2010 and completion of the U.S.
Highway 10 expansion to four-lanes from Stevens Point to Marshfield by 2013.

Retirement Program: Al efigible City of Marshfield employees participate in the Wisconsin Refirement System {System)}, a cost-sharing,
muitiple-employer, defined benefit public employee retirement system (PERS). Additional details regarding this are presented in Note 10 -
Defined Benefit Pension Plans in the Notes fo Financial Statements.

Debt Administration: As of December 31, 2004, the city had 24 debt issues outstanding. These issues included $24,280,183 of general
obligation bonds, notes and Tand contracts and $24,650,673 of merigage revenue bonds. The city has continually maintained its "Aa3
rating from Moody's Investors Service on general obligation debt issues and its electric mortgage revenue bond issues and an "A” rating on
its water morigage revenue bond issues. Under Wisconsin statutes, general obligation debt is subject to a legal limitation based on 5% of
total equalized value of real and personal property. As of December 31, 2004, the city's net general obligation debf of $24,280,183 was
well below the legal limit of $56,67C,395. Net bonded debt per capita equaled $1,277. The city adheres fo an aggressive repayment
policy.

During the year, the city issued $3,175,000 of general obligation notes to fund various public purpose capital projects, to refund §1,280,000
of the 1997 general obligation corporate purpose bonds and to refund $1,019,522 in outstanding state trust fund loans. Finally, the City
isstied $730,000 in taxable general obligafion refunding bonds to refund $699,187 of state trust fund loans.




Cash Management: Cash temporarily idle during the year was invested in demand deposits, government agencies, corporate bonds, and
the State of Wisconsin Local Government investment Pool. The average yield on investments ranged from 0.97% to 1.90%. The city and
its proprietary funds earned interest revenue of $798,948 on all investments for the year ended December 31, 2004

The city's investment policy is to minimize credit and market risks while maintaining a competitive yield on its portfolio. Accordingly, itis
the city's policy that deposits are either insured by federal depository insurance or cellateralized. For brief periods of time certain amounts
were nof collateralized pending transfer to the State of Wisconsin Local Government Investment Poal. All collateral on deposits was held
either by the city, our agent or a financial insiitution's trust depariment in the city's name.

Remaining investments were held in long-term securities in accordance with State Statutes and the city’s investment policy adopted in
2001. During 2004 the city maintained total investments between $5,167,792 and $6,163,104 int long-term government agency securities
of varying maturity dates with interest rates between 3.12% and 4.75% with an emphasis on safety, liquidity and yield on the funds
invested.

Risk Management: The City of Marshfield is a member of the League of Wisconsin Municipalities Insurance Plan. This plan provides
workers' compensation, casualty, professional liability and errors and omissions coverage tailored specifically for Wisconsin municipalities.
The City is also a member of the WI Local Government Property Insurance Fund program for property coverage needs for Wisconsin
municipalities.

Awards and Acknowledgements

The Government Finance Cfficers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Cerfificate of Achievement for
Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Marshfield for its comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2003. The certificate is the highest form of recognition for state and local governments. This was the tenth consecutive year
that the City of Marshfield Finance Department has received this prestigious award. In order to be awarded a Cettificate of Achievement,
the government must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized CAFR. This report must satisfy both GAAP and applicable legal
requirements.

A Certificate of Achieverent is valid for a period of cne year only. We believe that our current CAFR continues to meef the Certificate of
Achievement Program's requirements and we are submitting it to GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

f would like to acknowledge the City Administrator, city departments and all others who assisted and contributed to the preparation of this
report. Also, | would like to thank our independent auditors, Hawkins, Ash, Baptie & Company for their assistance and professional
guidance, which contributed significantly to the report quality and adherence fo accounting standards. Their experience and expertise was
exiremely valuable during this period of transition for the Finance depariment and implementation of significant accounting standard
changes.

Finally, | would like to acknowiedge and express my sincere appreciation to the entire staff of the Finance Department for their outstanding
work throughout the year. Without their support, preparation of this report would not have been possible.

Respectfu]ly submltted

l

Kelth R. Strey, CPA
Finance Director
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| Hawkins, Ash, Baptie & Company, LLP

Certified Public Accountants € Management Consultants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Common Coungil
City of Marshiield, Wisconsin

We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of the City of Marshfield, Wisconsin {"City”}, as of December 31, 2004, and
for the year then ended, as identified in the Table of Confents. These basic financial statements are the responsibility of the City's
management. Qur respansibility is to express an opinien on these basic financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our auditin accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Audifing Standards, issued by the Compiroller General of the United States. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial statements are free
of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the basic
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall basic financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the basic financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all materiaf respects, the financial positicen of the City of
Marshfield, Wisconsin as of December 31, 2004, and the results of its operations and cash flows of its proprietary funds for the year then
- ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.”

in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated April 1, 2005, on our consideration of the City of
Marshfield, Wisconsin's internal conirof over financial reporting and our test of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,

coniracts, and grants. That reportis an integral part of an audit performed with Government Auditing Standards and shouid be read in
conjunction with this report in considering the resulis of our audit.

Management's Discussion and Analysis is not a required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary information required
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board requires. We have applied certain limited procedures, consisting principally of inquiries

of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the supplementary information. We did not audit the
information and express no opinion thereon. ' ' . :

Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a whole, The combining and
individual fund financial statements, and schedules identified in the table of contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and
are not a required part of the basic financial statements of the City of Marshfield, Wisconsin. Such information has been subjected to the

auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in
relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

b, G, By € Conpans, LLP

Marshfield, Wisconsin
April 1, 2005
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

As management of the City of Marshfield, Wisconsin, we offer readers of the City of Marshfield, Wisconsin's basic financial statements this
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City of Marshfield, Wisconsin for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004.
We encourage readers to read the information presenied here in conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in the
City's basic financial statements, which follow this narrative.

Financial Highlights

» The assets of the City of Marshfield, Wisconsin exceeded its liabilities af the close of the fiscal year
by $106,651,017 (nef assets).

+ The government's total net assets increased by $4,019,409, primarily due to increases in the business-iype activifies net assets.

» As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City of Marshfield, Wisconsin's governmental funds reported combined ending fund
balances of $7,517,203, a decrease of $2,957,874 in comparison with the prior year. The decrease is primarily due to a
decrease in capital project expenditures, timing of related financing, and budgeted reduction of fund balances.

o At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance for the General Fund was $5,894,481, or 33 percent of total
general fund expenditures for the fiscal year.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an iniroduction to City of Marshfield, Wisconsin's basic financial statements. The
City's basic financial statements consist of three components; 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and
3) notes to the financial statements {see Figure 1). The basic financial statements present two different views of the City through the use
of government-wide statements and fund financial statements. In addition to the basic financial statements, this report contains other
suppiemental information that wili enhance the reader's understanding of the financial condition of the City of Marshfield, Wisconsin.

Required Components of Annual Financial Report

Figure 1
Management’s Basic
Discussion and Analysis Financial
Statements
Government-wide Financial Fund Notes fo the
Statements Finandil Financial Statemenis
Statements
Summary > Detail
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Basic Financial Statements

The first two statements in the basic financial statements are the Government-wide Financial Statements. They provide both shori and
long-term information about the City's financial status.

The next statements are Fund Financial Statements. These staiements focus on the activities of the individual parts of the City’s
govemment. These staterments provide more detail than the government-wide statements. There are three parts to the Fund Financlal
Statements: 1) the governmental funds statements; 2) the budgetary comparison statements; and 3) the proprietary fund statements.

The next section of the basic financial statements is the notes. The notes to the financial statements explain in detait some of the data
contained in those statements. After the notes, supplemental information is provided to show details aboui the City's individual funds.
Budgetary information required by the General Statutes also can be found in this part of the statements.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The govemment-wide financial statements are designed to provide the reader with a broad overview of the City’s finances, similar in format
to a financial statement of a private-sector business. The government-wide statements provide short and long-term information about the
City's financial status as a whole.

The two government-wide statements report the City's net assets and how they have changed. Net assefs are the difference between the
City's total assets and total liabilities. Measuring net assets is one way to gauge the City's financial condition.

The government-wide statements are divided into two categories: 1) governmental acfivities and 2) business-type activities. The
governmental activities include most of the City's basic services such as public safety, parks and recreation, and general administration.
Property taxes and state and federal grant funds finance most of these activities. The business-type activities are those that the City
charges customers to provide. These include the electric, water, sewer, ambulance and storm water services offered by the City of
Marshfietd, Wisconsin,

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide a more detailed look at the City's most significant activities. A fund is a grouping of related accounts
thai is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City of Marshfield,
Wisconsin, like all other governmental entifies in Wisconsin, uses fund accounting to ensure and reflect compliance (or non-compliance)
with finance-related legal requirements, such as the State of Wisconsin Stafutes or the City’s budget ordinance. All of the funds of City of
Marshfield, Wisconsin can be divided into three categories: govemmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds.

Governmental Funds — Governmental funds are used to account for those functions reported as governmental activities in the
government-wide financial statements. Most of the City's basic services are accounted for in governmental funds. These funds focus on
how assets can readily be converted into cash flow in and out, and what monies are left at year-end that will be available for spending in
the next year. Governmental funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting which provides a short-
term spending focus. As a result, the governmental fund financial statements give the reader a detailed short-term view that helps him or
her determine if there are more or less financial rescurces available to finance the City's programs. The refationship between government
activities (reported in the Statement of Net Assefs and the Statement of Activities) and govemmental funds is described in a reconciliation
that is a part of the fund financial statements,

Information is presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the general fund and the debt service fund, both of which are considered to be major
funds. Data from the other govemmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of
these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of combining stafements elsewhere in this report.

The City of Marshfield, Wisconsin adopts an annual budget for its governmental funds (except those for which multi-year project budgets
are approved) as required by the State of Wisconsin Statutes. The budget is 2 legally adopted decument thaf incorperates input from
citizens of the City, management of the City, and decisions of the Council abcut which services to provide and how to pay for them. t also
authorizes the City to obtain funds from identified sources to finance these current period activities. The budgetary comparison schedule
provided for the General and Debt Service Funds demonstrates how well the City complied with the budget ordinance and whether or not
the Cily succeeded in providing the services as planned when the budget was adopted. The statement shows four columns: 1) the
original budget as adopted by the council; 2) the final budget as amended by the council; 3) the actual resources, charges to

appropriations, and ending balances in the General Fund; and 4) the variance between the final budget and the actual revenues and
expenditures.
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Proprietary Funds - City of Marshfield, Wisconsin has two different kinds of proprietary funds, Enterprise and Intermnal Service Funds.
Enterprise Funds are used 1o report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the govemment-wide financial statements.
City of Marshfield, Wisconsin uses enterprise funds to account for its electric and water activity, sanitary sewer operations, ambulance
services and storm water activity. These funds are the same as those functions shown in the business-type activities in the Statement of
Net Assets and the Statement of Activities. Infernal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulated and allocate costs
internally among the City of Marshfield’s various functions. The City of Marshfield uses intemal service funds to account for its machinery
and equipment. Because both of these services predominately benefit governmental rather than business-type functions, they have been
included within governmental activifies in ihe government-wide financial statements.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only in more detail. The proprietary
fund financial statements provide separate information for the Electric and Water Utility and for the Wastewater Utility, both of which are
considered to be major funds of the City of Marshfield. Conversely, the internal service fund is presented in the proprietary fund financial
statements, as a single column.

Fiduciary Funds — Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the government. Fiduciary
funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statement because the resources of those funds are not available to support the
City of Marshfield, Wisconsin's own programs. The most significant fiduciary fund maintained by the City of Marshfield, Wisconsin is the
Property Tax Fund which records the tax roll and tax collections for other taxing jurisdictions within the City of Marshfield, Wisconsin. The
accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for governmental funds.

Notes to the Financial Statements — The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided
in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Other Information — In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report includes certain required
supplementary information conceming the City of Marshfield, Wisconsin. Required supplementary information can be found following the

notes to the financial statemenis
The City of Marshfield, Wisconsin’s Net Assets

Figure 1
(In Thousands of dolfars)

Governmental Activities Business-Type Aclivities Total
2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003

Current & other assets $ 21502 § 22167 0§ 11405 $ 13008 § 32907 $ 35173
Capital assets 56,753 55,370 83,358 81,343 140,111 136,713

Total assets $ 78285 § 77537 $ 04763 § 94349 $ 173018 § 171,886
Long-term liabilities ouistanding $ 23812 § 22834 $ 27144 § 27378 $ 50756 § 50212
Other liabilities 12,811 13,226 2.800 5,718 15,611 18,944

Total liabilities $ 36423 § 38,0860 $§ 20044 § 33096 3 66367 § 69,156
Net assets:

Invested in capital assets,

net of relaied debt § 3598 $ 30829 § 58590 $ 54807 $ 94546 § 85636
Restricted 4,661 4753 3,274 3,710 7,935 8,463
Unrestricted 1,215 5,895 2,955 2,736 4170 8,631

Total net assets § 41832 § 41477 § 64819 § 61253 $. 108651 $§ 102730

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as one useful indicater of a government's financial condition. The assets of the City of
Marshfield, Wisconsin exceeded liabilities by $106,651,000 as of December 31, 2004. The City's net assets increased by $4,019,000 for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004. However, the largest portion (89%) reflects the City's investment in capital assets (e.g. land,
land improvements, buildings, and equipment), less any related debt still outstanding that was issued to acquire those items. The City of
Marshfield, Wisconsin uses these capital assets fo provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future
spending. Although the City of Marshfield, Wisconsin's investment in its capital assets is reported net of the outstanding related debt, the
resources needed to repay that debt must be provided by other sources, since the capital asseis cannot be used to liquidate these
liabilities. An additional portion of the City of Marshfield, Wisconsin's net assets (7%) represents resources that are subject to external
restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of $4,169,000 is unrestricted.
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City of Marshfield, Wisconsin Changes in Net Asseis

Figure 2
(In Thousands of dollars)

Governmental Aclivities Business-Type Activities Total
2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003
Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for services $ 149 $ 1557 § 27703 § 25754 § 28199 § 2731
Grants & contributions 3,081 2,965 1,212 597 4,293 3,562
General revenues;
Taxes 9,600 9,950 668 - 10,268 9,950
State shared revenue 5,253 5,645 - - 5,253 5,645
Interest and investment income 383 452 467 380 850 842
Miscellaneous 205 142 16 - 221 142
Total revenues § 20018 $ 2071 $ 30068 $ 26741 $ 50084 § 47452
Expenses:
General government $ 2596 § 2,641 $ - % - 8 2596 § 2,641
Public safety 7,322 7,124 - - 7,322 7,124
Public works 5,047 5,897 - - 5,947 5,897
Health and human services 141 148 - - 141 148
Culture, recreation & education 3,037 3,374 - - 3,037 3,374
Conservation & development 780 1,992 - - 760 1,892
Interest on long-term debt 1,149 1,287 - - 1,149 1,297
Electric & water - - 20,636 18,732 20,636 18,732
Wastewater - - 3,200 3,170 3,200 3,170
Other business-type activities - -- 1,277 773 1,277 773
Total expenses $§ 20052 § 22473 $_ 25113 § 22675 § 46065 § 45148
Excess (deficiency) before transfers  § 934) § (1,762) § 4953 § 4066 § 4019 § 2,304
Transfers 1,289 1,784 {1,289) {(1.794) -- -
Change in net assets $ 355 3 32 % 3664 § 2272 % 4019 § 2,304
Net assets, beginning of year 41,477 41,445 61,155 58,981 102,632 100,428
Net assets, end of year $ 41832 § M477 $ 64819 § 61253 § 106651 §_ 102730

Figure 2 provides summarized operating results and their impact on net assts. Both governmental and business-type activities increased
the City's financial position.

Governmental activities: The City relies primarily on taxes {approximately 50%) and state shared revenue (approximately 25%) to
provide basic services. Revenues were generally at similar levels. Public safety (approximately 33%) and public works (approximately
25%) comprise the majority of expenses. Expenses were generally consistent, with a decrease in conservation and development. This
decrease is the result of less economic development expenditures in the City's TIF district's.

Business-type activities: Utility charges for services increased by approximately 8%. Wholesale electric power cost increased by $1.8

million over 2003. These costs are passed along to electric customers, and accounts for most of the increase in revenues. Customer
contributions increased for customer-financed capital additions, and the City levied $668,000 in taxes for the Storm Water Utlity.
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Financial Analysis of the City’s Funds

As noted earlier, the City of Marshfield, Wisconsin uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
reguirements. .

Governmental Funds. The focus of the City of Marshfield, Wisconsin’s governmental funds provide information on near-term inflows,
outflows, and balances of usable resousces. Such information is useful in assessing the City of Marshfield, Wisconsin's financing
requirements. Specifically, unreserved fund halance ¢an be a useful measure of a government's net resources available for spending at
the end of the fiscal year.

The general fund is the primary operating fund of the City of Marshfield, Wisconsin. At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund
balance of the General Fund was $5,894,481 while total fund batance was $6,508,366. As a measure of the general fund’s liguidity, it may
be useful to compare hoth unreserved fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unreserved fund balance
represents 33 percent of fotal General Fund expenditures, while total fund balance represents 37 percent of that same amount.

At December 31, 2004, the governmental funds of City of Marshfield, Wisconsin reported a combined fund balance of $7,517,203, a
decrease of $2,507 874 from last year. The decrease is atiributable to capital cublay costs incurred prior fo the related financing and
budgeted reduction of fund balances.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights: During the fiscal year, the City revised the budget on several occasions. Generally, budget
amendments fall into cne of three categories: 1) amendments made to adjust the estimates that are used o prepare the original budget
ordinance once more accurate information is available; 2) amendments made fo recognize new funding amounts from external sources,
such as Federal and State grants; and 3) increases in appropriations that become necessary to maintain services or cover unanticipated
expenses. There were no significant budget amendments during the year.

Revenues were less than budgeted amounts primarily because of interest rates remaining lower than anticipated, grant funds the City
originally had expected to receive became unavailable and certain fees being less than expected. Expenditures were less than budgeted
due to actual and incurred costs being less than estimated for budgeting purposes The City had anticipated using fund balance (or having
a deficify of about $1 million for 2004.

Proprietary Funds. The City of Marshfield, Wiscensin's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-
wide statements but in more detail. Information on enterprise fund net assets follows:

Unrestricted Net Asseis Change in Net Assets

2004 2003 2004 2003
Electric and Water $ 1879232 § 1737950 § 2675377 § 1807938
Wastewater 941,777 1,034,756 718,145 468,708
EMS 28,484 37172 91,000 66,211
Storm Water 108,790 (60,264) 169,054 (66,546)

Other factors concerning the finances of these funds have already been addressed in the discussion of the City of Marshfield, Wisconsin's
business-type activities.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets. The City of Marshfield, Wisconsin's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business—type acfivities as of
Decamber 31, 2004, fotals $140,111,035 (net of accumulated depreciation). These assets include land, land improvements, buildings,
consiruction in progress, and infrastructure.

Major capital asset iransactions during the year include the following additions (there were no significant demolitiens or disposals):
e Peach Avenue underpass completion.

e Qak Avenue reconsiruction.
¢ Steve J. Miller Park - Phase I completion.
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City of Marshfield, Wisconsin’s Capital Assets
Figure 3
{In Thousands of dolfars)

Governmentat Business-Type
Acivities Activities © Total
2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003
Land and land improvements $ 7617 § 7611 § 1333 § 833 8 8,950 $ 8,444
Buildings and improvements 17,564 17,032 27,548 27,497 45,110 44,529
Machinery and equipment 13,519 12,853 7732 7.418 21,251 19,969
Infrastructurefsystems 45,337 43,424 72,848 69,596 118,186 113,020
Construction in progress - 1,257 1,164 1,257 1,164
Less: Accumulated depreciation (27,284 (25,550) (27,359) (24,863} (54,643) (50.413)
TOTAL 8 56,753 § 55370 § 83358 § 81343 § 1401411 § 136,713

Additional information on the City's capital assets can be found in the notes to the Comprehensive Annual Financial Statements.
Long-term Obligations. As of December 31, 2004, the City of Marshfield, Wisconsin had total long-term obligations outstanding of
$49,204,062. Of this, $24,280,184 is debt backed by the full faith and credit of the City. The remainder of the City’s debt represents
mortgage revenue bends secured solely by specified revenue sources (i.e. revenue bonds) and compensated absences.
City of Marshfield, Wisconsin’s Outstanding Long-Term Obligations
Figure 4

{In Thousands of dolfars)

Governmental Business-Type
Acfivities Activities Total
2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003
General obligation bonds/notes  § 23,481 § 25349 § 799 § 811 % 24280 $ 26,160
Mortgage revenue bonds - - 24,651 26,295 24,651 26,295
Other long-term obligations 273 258 -- - 273 258
TOTAL $ 23,754 § 25,607 § 25450 § 27106 § 48204 § 52,713

The City of Marshfield, Wisconsin's total debt decreased by $3,509,143 {7%) during the past fiscal year. This is due to the issuance of less
than $3 million in new debt less scheduled principal payments of more than $6 million during the year.

The State of Wisconsin statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt that a unit of government can issue to 5 percent of the total

equalized value of taxable property located within that government's boundaries. The legal debt limit for City of Marshiield, Wisconsin is
$56,670,365.

Additionaf information regarding the City of Marshfield, Wisconsin's long-term debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.
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Economic Factors And Next Year’s Budgets And Rates

During 2004, the city considered the formation of a Storm Water Utility for implementation in 2005, bui elected not to do so. Before the end
of 2005, the City of Marshfield expects fo receive it's storm water discharge permit from the Wl Depariment of Natural Resources that will
oufline standards the city will be required to meet, with specific deadlines set for 2008 and 2013. Once this permit is received and an
analysis performed to determine the amount of infrastructure improvements and other costs necessary to meet these regulatory deadlines,
the city may reconsider formation of a Storm Water Utility as a funding source.

In 2004, the city refinanced eight state trust fund loans and one general obligation bond issue to realize current and future interest cost
savings. For 2005, the city plans to issue $3,045,000 of general obligation corporate purpose bonds for the city's 2005 capital projects and
$1,740,000 of sewerage system revenue bonds for the wastewater uiility’s 2004 and 2005 capital projects.

During the 2005 budget development process, the City of Marshfield Common Council approved transferring the Public Fire Protection
Charge (Fire Hydrant Rental) from tax levy funding fo Water Utility fee based funding, effective July 1, 2005.

The 2005 adopted General Fund budget is $18.99 million, an increase of 2.06% over the 2004 revised budget of $18.62 million. The

. overall 2005 adopted budget for all funds is $34.61 million, a decrease of 0.14% over the 2004 revised budget for all funds of $34.66
million. Property taxes levied in 2004 for 2005 city purposes increased by $1,709,320. The tax rate forcity purposes in 2004 for 2005
increased by 30.47.

During 2003, several large construction projects broke ground that were completed in 2004 at an estimated value of over $28.4 million.
Significant construction projects scheduled to start in 2005 are at an estimated value in excess of $22 million.

In April of 2004, the W! State Supreme Court issued a ruling that meant the Marshfield Clinic real estate and personal property was
taxabie, effective January 1, 2004. This ruling, in addition to completion of large construction projects in 2004, will increase the assessed
valuation of the city in 2005.

The City of Marshfield, the City of Wisconsin Rapids and Wood County have evaluated the creation of a Joint Emergency Services
Dispatch center and are in negofiations on an agreement to consolidate this function. The goal for full implementation and start of
operations is July 2008.

Finally, the city, like all other WI municipalities, face the high likelihood of some form of a State of W1 imposed property tax limit as a part of
the state biennial budget process. The State Legislature and Governor's office have two different proposals for levy limits on all
municipalities in WI. The cily will be adversely affected by aither proposal, especially in light of the fact that the State of W has frozen or
reduced State Shared Revenue and various aids to municipalities. The likely levy limits and frozen or reduced intergovemmental revenues
to the city will make development of the 2006 budget challenging.

Requests for Information
This report is designed to provide an overview of the City’s finances for those with an interest in this area. Questions conceming any of the

information found in this report or requests for additional information should be directed to the Finance Director, City of Marshfield, P.O.
Box 727, Marshfield, Wisconsin 54449,
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ASSETS
Cash and equivalents
[nvestments
Receivables
Taxes
Accounts
Special assessments
Loans
Other
Inventories
Prepaids
Deferred charges
Due from other governments
Internal balances
Restricted assets
Cash and investments
Capital assets {nef of accumulated depreciation)

TOTAL ASSETS

CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
DECEMBER 31, 2004

BUSINESS
GOVERNMENTAL TYPE
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL
$ 9,918,698 § 1,397,801 § 11,316,499
90,143 2,350,193 2,440,338
8,325,604 37,701 8,363,305
82,798 2,095,580 2,178,378
691,081 -- 691,681
1,217,672 1,217,672
72,153 - 72,153
80,978 743,353 824,331
60,667 8,378 70,045
188,849 188,849
224629 618 225,247
737,266 (737,268) -
- 5,319,169 5,319,169
56,752,848 83,358,187 140,111,035
$ 78,254,537 § 94,763,563 $ 173,018,100

(Continued on page 21}

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS - Confinued
DECEMBER 31, 2004

BUSINESS
GOVERNMENTAL TYPE
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 3 874,756 § 1,850,415 § 2,725,171
Accrued interest 270,884 92,876 363,760
Other accrued expenses 20,555 825,840 846,395
Payable from restricted assets
Current portion of long-term debt 141,582 1,258,732 1,400,314
Other - 18,935 18,935
Due to other governments 208,510 15 208,525
Deferred revenues 11,294,242 12,650 11,306,892
NONGURRENT LIABILITIES
Due within one year 3,183,667 450,000 3,633,667
Capital feases payable - 117,548 117,548
Customer deposits -- 1,575,757 1,575,797
Noncurrent portion of long-term obligations ‘ 20,478,528 23,741,551 44,170,079
TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 36,422,724 § 29944359 § 66,367,083
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt $ 35,956,355 § 58,583,971 § 94,546,326
Restricted for
Special revenue funds 2,225,849 -- 2,225,849
Capital projects 1,085,192 -- 1,085,182
Debt service 3,411 923,674 927,085
Other activities 1,190,605 2,350,764 3,541,369
Perpetual care - nonexpendable 155,768 .- 155,768
Unrestricted 1,214,633 2,954,795 4,169,428
TOTAL NET ASSETS 3 41831813 8 £4,819.204 § 106,651,017
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 78,254,537 § 94,763,563 § 173.018,100

The accompanying notes are an infegral part of these statements.
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

PROGRAM REVENUES

OPERATING CAPITAL
CHARGES FOR GRANTS AND GRANTS AND
EXPENSES SERVICES CONTRIBUTIONS _ CONTRIBUTIONS
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
General government ) 2,595,656 $ 695,416 § -3
Public safety 7,322,236 211,929 241,390
Public works 5,947,439 172,209 2,494,257
Health and human setvices 141,037 110,797 -
Culture, recreation and education 3,036,630 255,956 344,995
Conservatior: and development 760,017 49,355 -
Debt service
Interest and fiscal charges 1,148,804 -- --
TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES § 20,951,819 § 1,485,662 § 3,080,642 §
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES

Electric $ 18,547,915 § 19,708,028 § 640,251 §
Water 2,087,770 2,866,482 443,921
Wastewater 3,199,915 4,389,102 --
EMS 717,343 738,935 68,086
Storm Water 560,026 824 59,845

TOTAL BUSINESS TYPE ACTIVITIES $ 25112969 § 27,703,431 % 1,212,103 §

TOTAL 3 46,064,788 § 29,199,093 § 4,292.745 § -

General revenues
Property taxes
Public accomodation taxes
Other taxes and payments in lieu of tax
State shared revenues
Unrestricted investment earnings
Gain on sale of capital assets
Miscellaneous revenues

Transfers
Total general revenues and transfers
Change in net assets

Met assets - beginning of year
Net assets - end of year

(Continued on page 23)

The agcompanying notes are an integral part of these statements,
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

NET (EXPENSE) REVENUE AND CHANGES N NET ASSETS

GOVERNMENTAL  BUSINESS-TYPE

ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL
(1,900,240) $  (1,900,240)
(6,368.917) (6,368.917)
(3,280,973) (3,280,973)
(30,240) (30,240)
(2,435,679) (2,435,679)
(710,862) (710,662)
(1,148.804) (1,148.804)
(16.375,515) $ (16375515
-3 1,800,364 $ 1,800,364
: 1,222,633 1,222,633
1,189,187 1,189,187
89,738 (89,738)
- (499.357) 499,357
- $ 3,802,565 $ 3,802,565
(16375,515) § 3.802.565 §  (12.572,950)
8830,158 § 667,478 § 9,497,636
239,137 - 239,137
530,723 530,723
5,253,370 - 5,253,370
383,312 467,150 850,462
- 15,998 15,998
205,033 - 205,033
1.288.753 (1.288753) .
16,730,486 $ (1381208 16,592,359
354971 § 3,664,438 $ 1,019,409
41,476,842 61,154,766 102,631,608
11831813 § 64819200 § 106,651,017

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN

BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2004

OTHER TOTAL
DEBT GOVERNMENTAL GOVERNMENTAL
GENERAL SERVICE FUNDS FUNDS
ASSETS
Cash and equivalents 3 4,710,810 § 791,335 § 3,898,252 § 9,400,397
Receivables
Taxes 5,407,015 2,069,766 848,823 8,325,604
Accounts 79,310 - -- 79,310
Special assessments 691,081 - 691,081
Loans - 1,115,915 1,115,915
QOther - 72,153 72,153
Prepaids 54,685 4,568 59,253
Due from other governments 78,418 142,396 220,814
Due from other funds 4,545,358 -- 4,545,358
TOTAL ASSETS $ 15566677 § 2,861,101 § 6082107 § 24,509,885
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 681,700 § - 128,651 § 810,351
Due to
Other funds 82,456 3,728,800 3,811,256
{Other governments 172,990 - 35,520 208,510
Deferred revenues 8,123,165 2,857,690 1,181,710 12,162,565
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 3 9,060,311 § 2,857,690 § 5074681 § 16,992 682
FUND BALANCES
Reserved for
Special revenue funds $ - $ -3 3,479,835 § 3,479,835
Capital projects - 1,085,192 1,085,192
Debt service - 3411 -- 3411
Other activities 511,885 - 155,768 767,653
Unreserved 5,894 481 -- (3.713,36%) 2,181,112
TOTAL FUND BALANCES 3 6.506.366 $ 34118 1,007,426 $ 7,517.203
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES § 15566,677 § 2,861,101 8 6,082,107 $ _ 24,509,885

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

Fund balances - total governmental funds $ 7,517,203
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of assets are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not
financial resources and therefore are not reported in the funds. 54,204,554

Some revenues are deferred in the funds because they are not available
to pay current period’s expenditures 868,323

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of fleet machinery and
equipment to individual funds. The assets, liabilities and net assets of the interal service
fund are included with governmental activities on the statement of net assefs. 2,273,893

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not
reported in the funds. Interest on long-term debt is nof accrued in governmental
funds, but rather is recognized as an expenditure when due. Ali liabilities — both
current and long-term — are reported in the statement of net assets.

Accrued interest payable ‘ $  (270,884)

Bonds and notes payable (22,488,071)

Compensated absences _ {273,205) (23,032.160)
Total net assets of governmental activities $ 41831813

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

REVENUE

Taxes
Special assessments
Infergovernmental revenues
Licenses and permits
Fines, forfeits and penalties
Charges for services
Other revenue

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Current
General government
Public safety
Public works
Health and human services
Culture, recreation and education
Conservation and development
Capital outlay
Debt service
Principal retirement
Interest and fiscai charges
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANGING SQURCES (USES)
fssuance of long-term debt
Issuance of refunding bonds
Transfer from Enterprise Fund
Operating transfers in
Operating transfers out
Payment to refunding bond escrow agent
Operating transfer-nonexpendable trust
TOTAL OTHER FINANGING SOURCES (USES)

~ EXCESS OF REVENLUE AND OTHER SOURCES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND QTHER USES

FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004
OTHER TOTAL
DEBT GOVERNMENTAL  GOVERNMENTAL
GENERAL SERVICE FUNDS FUNDS
$ 7,381,627 $ 907,60 § 1,312,101 § 9,600,828
430,340 - 430,340
7,058,261 949,167 8,007,428
192,450 157,334 349,784
115,939 115,939
678,004 88,998 767,002
633,605 228,093 861,698
§ 16490226 § 907,100 % 2735693 § 20,133,019
$ 2,359,388 § -~ § 74,225 § 2,433,613
7,143,411 - - 7143411
4,579,859 317,218 4,897,077
132,291 - 132,291
2,548,830 193,445 2,742,275
429,738 151,844 581,582
569,261 3,002,363 3,571,624
4,311,821 - 4,311,821
- 1,126,650 13,912 1,140,562
$ 17762778 § 5438471 8 3753007 § 26954256
§  (1.272552)8 (4531371 § (10173158 (6821230
$ - § 1,763,332 § 811,278 § 2,574,610
- 1,320,000 - 1,320,000
781,632 475,000 32121 1,288,753
72,859 889,903 625,671 1,588,433
(85,000) - (1,506,243) (1,591,343)
- (1,320,000 - {1,320,000)
2,910 -- - 2,910
3 772,401 § 3,128235 § (37,213) § 3,863,363
$ (50015) § (1,403,136} $ (1,054,587) §  (2,957,874)
7,006,517 1,406,547 2,062,013 10,475,077
s 6,506,366 $ 3411 § 1,067,426 § 7,517,203

FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
RECONCILIATION OF STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

Net change in fund balances - fotal governmental funds 3 (2,957,874)
Amounis reported for governmental activifies in the statement of activities are different because:

The acquisition of capital assets are reported in the govemmental funds as expenditures.
However, for govemmental activities those costs are shown in the statement of net assets
and allocated over their estimated useful lives as annual depreciation expenses in

the statement of activities.

Capital outlay reported in governmental fund statements § 3,571,624
Less expenditures not capitalized (241,915)
Depreciation expense reported in the statement of activities : (1.679.389)
Amount by which capital outlays are greater than
depreciation in the current period. 1,650,324

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital asset
sales, frade-ins, and donations and changes in accrual of revenues that do
not provide current financial resources {38,926)

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of fleet
machinery and equipment to individual funds. The nef revenue of certain
activiies of internal service funds is reported with governmental activities. 23,273

Some capital assets acquired during the year were financed with loans. The amount of

the loan is reported in the governmental funds as a source of financing. In the statement

of net assets however, loans are not reported as a financing source, but rather constitute a

long-term liability. The amount of loans reported in the governmental funds statement is: (3,894,610)

Ceriain employee benefits are reported in the government funds when amounts are paid.
The statement of activities reports the value of benefits earned during the year.
This year the accrual of these benefits increased by: 15,349

Certain revenues are deferred in the governmental funds because they are
not available to pay current period expenditures. In the statement of
activities these are recorded as revenue in the current year:
Special assessments to be collected after year end (113,556)

Repayment of principal on long-term debt is reported in the governmental
funds as an expenditure, but is reported as a reduction in long-term debt
in the statement of net assets and does not affect the statement of activities.
The amount of long-term debt principal payments in the current year is; 5,631,821

In governmental funds interest payments on outstanding debt are reported as
an expenditure when paid. In the statement of acfivifies interest is reported
as it accrues.

The amount of interest paid during the current period 3 1,086,184

The amount of interest accrued during the current period (1,047,014}

Interest paid is greater (less) than interest accrued by 39,170
Change in net assets - governmental activities $ 354,971

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2004

GOVERNMENTAL
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUNDS ACTIVITIES-
ELECTRIC WASTE- OTHER INTERNAL
AND WATER WATER ENTERPRISE SERVICE
UTILITY UTILITY FUNDS TOTAL FUND
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash 3 652,125 $§ 518,779 § 276,897 § 1,397,801 § 608,444
Investments 2,350,193 - - 2,350,193 .
Taxes receivable -- 37,701 .- 37,701
Accounts receivahle 1,977,912 26,522 91,146 2,095,580 -
Due from other funds 2,597,749 614,453 - 3,212,202 4,405
Due from other governments -- 618 - 618 3,815
Restricted assets, cash and investments 2,968,405 2,350,764 - 5,319,169 --
[nventories 647,750 95,603 -- 743,353 80,978
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS § 11794734 8 3644440 § 318043 § 15156617 § 697,642
NONCURRENT ASSETS
Deferred debits 3 188,849 § - $ -4 188,849 § --
Other asseis -- 9,378 - 9,378 1.414
3 188849 § 9378 - § 168,227 § 1,414
Capital assets, at cost $ 64511537 § 45,554,165 § 851,819 § 1GN7521 § 6,469,303
Less accumulated depraciation (19,240,585 (7.704,230) (414.11%) _ (27,359.334) (3,921,009
Net capital assets § 452700552 § 37819935 § 237700 § 83358187 §  2.543.294
TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS § 45459401 § 37859313 § 237700 § 83556414 § 2549708
TOTAL ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS $ 56653535 § 41.503,753 § 555743 § 98713031 § 3.247350

(Continued on page 29)

The accompanying nofes are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS - Continued
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2004

GOVERNMENTAL
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUNDS ACTIVITIES-
ELECTRIC WASTE- OTHER INTERNAL
AND WATER WATER ENTERPRISE SERVICE
UTILITY UTILITY FUNDS TOTAL FUND
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 1,721,594 § 60,023 $ 65310 § 1,846,927 § 64,405
Due to other funds 3,915,024 34 444 - 3,949,468 1,241
Due to other governments - 15 -- 15 -
Accrued salaries, wages and
compensated absences 794,678 24,333 6,829 825,840 20,555
Accrued interest - 92,876 - 92,876 -
Current portion of long-term debt - 1,257,087 1,645 1,258,732 141,582
Deferred revenues - 12,650 12,650 -
Customer advances 1,575,797 -- -- 1,575,797 --
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 3 8,007,093 § 1,468,778 § 86434 § 9,562,305 3 221,783
CURRENT LIABILITIES PAYABLE
FROM RESTRICTED ASSETS
Accrued interest $ 18935 § - 3 - $ 18,935 §
Current portion mortgage revenue bonds 450,000 -- -- 450,000
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES PAYABLE
FROM RESTRICTED ASSETS b 468935 § -- 3 - 3 468935 §
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Capitai leases payable 3 -3 117,548 § -3 117,548 § --
Long-term obligations 4 834 045 18,813,170 94,335 23,741,551 749,162
TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES 3 4834046 § 18930718 § 94,335 § 23859099 % 749,162
TOTAL LIABILITIES § 13310074 8 20399496 $ 180,763 § 33830339 § 976,945
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt § 40,540,555 § 17,811,716 § 237,700 § 58589971 § 1,657,550
Restricted for dehi services 923,674 - - 923,674 -
Restricted for other activities -- 2,350,764 -- 2,350,764 612,855
Unrestricted 1,879,232 941,777 137,274 2,958,283 --
TOTAL NET ASSETS § 43343461 § 21104257 3 374974 § 64822692 § 227040
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS § 56,653,535 § 41,503,753 § 555,743 $ 3247350

Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of internal service fund activities related to enterprise funds. (3,488)
Net assets of husiness-type activities on statement of activities. $ 642819204

The accompanying nofes are an integral part of these statements.
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OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services

OPERATING EXPENSES

CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

GOVERNMENTAL
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUNDS ACTIVITIES-
ELECTRIC WASTE- OTHER INTERNAL
AND WATER WATER ENTERPRISE SERVICE
UTILITY UTILITY FUNDS _ TOTAL FUND

§ 22514510 § 4124226 § 867,750 § 27,566,486 3 1,557.674

Operations $ 16,764,573 § 583,878 $ 1,161,238 § 18,509,689 § 1,052,025
Maintenance 1,249,888 593,050 -- 1,842,938 --
General 339,461 418,942 75,860 834,263 -
Depreciation 1,865,667 1,040,722 31,170 2,937,559 437,163
Taxes 131,505 -- 131,505 --
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES § 20351004 % 2636532 § 1,268,268 § 24255954 § 1,489.18
OPERATING INCOME 3 2223416 § 1487634 § (400518)$ 3310532 § 68,486
NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSE)
Interest income 3 435,220 § 29,685 § 77 8 464,982 § -
Interest and fiscal charges (274,554) (572,977) (5,263) {852,794) (40,610)
Amortization of debt issue costs (11,245) -- .- (11,245) --
Property taxes -- -- 667,478 667,478
(ain on sale of capital assets -- 15,998 -- 15,998 --
Miscellaneous 50 2,118 2,168 5,597
Q{ther nonoperating expenses -- - (3.838) (3.838) {1,476)
TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUE 3 143421 § (527.248) § 860,572 § 282,743 3 (36,489)
INCOME BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS .

AND TRANSFERS $ 2372837 § 960,390 $ 260,054 § 3,593,281 § 31,997
Contributions from customers 1,084,172 264,876 -- 1,349,048 2,138
Transfers to general fund {781,632 {507,121} - (1,288,753) -

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS $ 2675377 § 718,145 § 260,054 § 3,683,576 § 34,135
NET ASSETS - January 1 40,668,084 20,386,112 114,920 2,236,270
NET ASSETS - December 31 $§ 43343461 § 21,104,257 § 374,974 $ 2,270,405

Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of internal service fund activities related to enterprise funds.

10,862

Change in net assets of business-type activities on statement of activities. $ 3,664,438

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers and users
Payments to wastewater utility
(collection of wastewater revenue)

Payments to suppliers and vendors
Payments to employees

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Transfer to governmental funds
Public benefits receipis
Payments {or public benefits

TOTAL CASH FLOWS USED IN NONCAPITAL
FINANGING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition and construction of fixed assets
Cost of retiring fixed assets
Interest paid
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets
Principal payments of bonds payable
Principal payments of GO refunding bonds
Principal payments of capital leases
Contributed capital
Contributions refunded

NET CASH (USED IN) CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Taxes received

Interest received
Purchase of investments
Proceeds from miscellaneous sales
NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004
BUSINESS-TYPE ENTERPRISE FUNDS GOVERNMENTAL
ACTIVITIES-
OTHER TOTAL INTERNAL
ELECTRIC ENTERPRISE ENTERPRISE SERVICE
AND WATER WASTEWATER FUNDS FUNDS FUND
$ 27,287,421 3 260,502 $ 880,377 § 28428300 § 1,554,967
(3,880,896) 3,880,896 - - -
(17,030,896) (962,788} (663,819) (18,657,503) {734,180}
(1,986,484) (704,258) (796,873) (3,487 ,515) (338,016)
b 4386145 § 2474352 § (680,315) § 6,283,182 % 482,781
$ (781632) $ (507,121)  § - (1288753 $
205,175 - - 205,175
{264,747) - - (264,747 -
3 (841,204) § (507,121) § -5 (1,34832%) §
§ (31429985 & (1,017,186) § {(136,196) § (429637) § {173,144)
(95,295) - - (95,295) -
(275,385) (577,749) (5,263) (858,397) (40,610)
39,434 47,121 1,500 88,055 2,251
(425,000) (1,219,445) - (1,644,445) (138,432)
(7.767) (2,007) (4,345) (11,209) -
. (36,214) - (36,214) -
400,416 264,876 1,185 666,477 2138
(218,724) - - (218,724) -
$ (3725316 §  (2540,694) §  (140,119) § (5406,129) § (347,797)
$ -8 - $ 667,478  § 667478 §
343,079 29,685 77 372,841
(457,414) - - (457,414} -
- - 933 933 4,183
) {114335) § 20685 668,488 § 583,838 § 4,183
$ (201,710)  § (543.778) % (51948) §  (887.434) § 139,177
3,912,239 3.413.321 278,843 7,604,403 469,267
8 3620529 § 2869543 8§ 226897 §___ 6716969 § 608,444
{Continued on page 32)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - Continued

RECONCILIATION COF OPERATING INCOME TG CASH
PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income
Adjusiments to reconcile operating income to

net cash provided by operating activities
Depreciation charged to depreciation expense
Depreciation charged to clearing account
Changes in assets and liabilities
(increase) decrease in assets
Accounts receivable
Due from other funds
Inventories
Increase (decrease) in current liabifities
Accounts payable
Due to other funds
Other accrued expenses

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR
Cash
Revenue bond special redemption investments

Revenue bond depreciation investments
Customer deposits

TOTAL CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Dividends reinvested

BUSINESS-TYPE ENTERPRISE FUNDS GOVERNMENTAL
ACTIVITIES-
OTHER TOTAL INTERNAL
ELECTRIC ENTERF'RISE ENTERPRISE SERVICE
AND WATER WASTEWATER FUNDS FUNDS FUND

$ 2223416 § 148763 §  (400518) § 3310532 § 68,486
1,692,528 1,040,722 3,170 2,764,430 437,163
282,503 - - 282,503 -

(19,017) 24,122 470,201 475306 -
(18,720) (8,950} - (23,570) (2,707)

84,425 (20,661} - 63,764 21,247
272,714 (44,800) 46,269 274,183 (42,675)
(8,870} (1,895) (52,068) (59.833) (73)

(124,844) (3,820) (675,369) (804,033) 1,350

$ 4389145 § 2474352 5 (560315) § 6283182 § 482,791
$ 2181460 § 518779 § 226897 § 2927138 § 608,444
1,242,608 - - 1,242,608 ;
150,000 2,350,764 - -

46,461 - : 45,461
$ 3620520 § 2869543 $ 296807 § 4216205 §  608ast
$ 77080 § - $ -3 77,080

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

ASSETS

Cash and equivalents
Investments

Taxes receivable
Other receivables

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Accounts payable

Other accrued expenses

Dug to other governments

TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS
Restricted

TOTAL NET ASSETS

- TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

The accompanying notes are an inftegral part of these statements.

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004
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FUNDS

$ 4,507,294

13,800
11,162,055

13,850

3 15,696,999

$ 23,474
261,162
15,412,363

& 15,696,999

$ .-
3 15,696,999
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2004

NOTE 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies of the City of Marshfield, Wiscensin conform fo accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America as applicable to governmental units. The following is a summary of the mare significan policies.

Reporting Entity

The City of Marshfield, Wisconsin was incorporated July 16, 1883, under the provisions of Chapter 280, Laws of Wisconsin, 1883. The
City operates under a Council-Mayor form of government and provides the following services as authorized by its charter: public safety
{police and fire), highways and sireets, sanitation, health and social services, culture, recreation, education, public improvements, planning
and zoning, and general administrative services.

The City's financial statements do not include any component units, as defined in GASB 14, as there are no organizations which meet the
criterion.

The basic criterion for including a legally separate organization as a Component Unit is the degree of financial accountability the City has
with the organization. The following circumstances set forth the City's financial accountability for a legally separate organization:

a The City is financially accountable if it appoints a voting majority of the organization's goveming body and {1) it is able to
impose its will on that organization or (2) there is a potenfial for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or
impose specific financial burdens on the City.

b. The City may be financially accountable if an organization is fiscally dependent on the City regardiess of whether the

grganization has (1) a separately elected governing hoard, (2} a governing board appointed by a higher level of government,
or (3) a jointly appointed board.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The statement of net assets and statement of activities display information about the reporfing government as a whole. They include all
funds of the reporting entity except for fiduciary funds. The statements distinguish befween governmental and business-type activities.
Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmentat revenues, and other nonexchange revenues. Business-
type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties for goods or services.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment are offset by program
revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. The City does not allocate indirect
expenses to functions in the statement of activities. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants whe purchase, use
or directly henefit from goads, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment, and 2) grants and contributions that are
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not included
among program revenues are reported as general revenues. Operating expenses include the cost of sales and services, maintenance,
administrative expenses and depreciation on capital assets. Expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating.
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
DECEMBER 31, 2004

NOTE 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Continued

Fund Financial Statements

Financial statements of the reporiing enfity are organized info funds, each of which is considered to be a separate accounting entity. Each
fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts, which constitute its assets, liabilities, net assetsffund equity,
revenues, and expenditure/expenses.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even though the [atter are
excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are
reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

Funds are organized as major funds or non-major funds within the governmental and proprietary statements. An emphasis is placed on
major funds within the govemmental and proprietary categories. A fund is considered major if it is the primary operating fund of the city or
meets the following criteria:

a. Total assets, liahilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of that individual governmental or enterprise fund are ai least
10 percent of the corresponding total for all funds of that category or type, and

b. The same element of the individual governmental fund or enterprise fund that met the 10 percent test is at least 5 percent of
the corresponding total for all governmental and enterprise funds combined.

c. [n addition, any other governmental or proprietary fund that the city believes is particularly important to financial statement
users may be reported as a major fund.

Basis of Presentation

Government-wide Statements - The government-wide statement of nef assets and statement of activifies report the overall financial
activity of the City, excluding fiduciary activities. Eliminations have been made fo minimize the double-counting of internal activities of the
City. These statements distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of the City. Governmental activities generally
are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other nonexchange transactions. Business-type activities are financed in
whole or in part by fees charged to external parties.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for the different business-type acfivities
of the City and for each function of the City's governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific
function. Program revenues include (a) fines, fees, and charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the programs and
(b} grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that
are not classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements - The fund financial statements provide information about the City's funds, including fiduciary funds.
Separate statements for each fund caiegory — governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary are presented. The emphasis on fund financial
statements is on major governmentat and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining governmental and
enferprise funds are aggregated and reperted as nonmajor funds.

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions associated with the principal activity

of the fund. Exchange fransactions are those in which each party receives and gives up essentially equal values. Nonoperating revenues,
such as subsidies and investment earnings, result from nonexchange transactions or ancillary activities.
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
DECEMBER 31, 2004

NOTE 1_- Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Continued

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund - The General Fund is used to account for all financial resources, except those required to be accounted for in
another fund.

Debt Service - Used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and payment of, general long-term debt principal, interest,
and related costs.

The City reports the following major proprietary funds:

Electric and Water - Al activities necessary to provide electric and water services to residents of the City and outlaying areas.
Fund activities include adminisiration, billing and collection, operations, maintenance, and financing.

Sewer - This fund accounts for the maintenance of the City's sewer system. Wisconsin State Statutes Section 66.076, permit
municipalities to implement sewer fees to recover the costs of operation, maintenance, repair, and depreciation of sewer coltection
and transporiation facilities. Sewer maintenance costs are recovered through a user fee rather than through the property tax.

Additionaily, the City reports the foltowing fund types:

Internal service fund — Accounts for fleet machinery and equipment provided fo other departments of the government, or to actual
parties, on a cost reimbursement basis.

Agency - This fund accounts for taxes and deposits collected by the City, acting in the capacity of an agent, for distribution to other
governmental units or designated beneficiaries.

Basis of Accounting

The government-wide, proprietary, and fiduciary fund financial statements are reparted using the economic resources measurement focus
and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred,
regardless of when the relaied cash flow takes place. Non-exchange transacfions, in which the City receives value without directly giving
equal value in return, include property tax revenue, grants, and other contributions. On an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is
recognized in the period for which the levy is intended to finance, which is the year after the taxes are levied. Taxes levied in 2004 that will
be collected in 2005 are recorded as receivable and deferred revenue. Deferred revenue arises when assefs are recognized before
revenue recognition criteria have been satisfied. Eligibility includes timing requirements, which specify the year when the resources are
required to be used or the fiscal year when use is first permitted; matching requirements, in which the City must provide local resources to
be used for a spacified purpose; and expenditure requirements, in which the resources are provided o the City on a reimbursement basis.

Governmental funds are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are
collecfible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the City considers all
revenues to be available if they are collected within 80 days of the end of the current year. Expenditures generally are recorded when the
{iability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, principal and interest on general long-term debt, claims and judgments, and
compensated absences are recorded only when payment is due, General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in
governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing sources.

Significant revenue sources, which are suscepfible to accrual include property taxes, state share revenues, grants, contributions, and

interest. All other revenue sources including licenses, permits, fines, and forfeits are considered to be measurable and avaiiable only when
cash is received.

-36-




CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
DECEMBER 31, 2004

NOTE 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Continued

Basis of Accounting - Continued

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1988, are followed in both the government-wide
and enterprise fund financial statements fo the extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board. The City also has the option of following subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type activities
and enterprise funds, subject to the same limitation. The City has elected not to foliow subsequent private-sector guidance.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, as classified in the statement of cash flows, consist of alt highly liquid investments with an initial maturity of
three months or less,

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are recorded at gross amounts. No allowance for uncollectible accounts has been provided since it is believed that
the amount of such allowance would not be material. Unbilled utility services at year end are recognized as revenues and receivables in
the accompanying financial statements.

Inventory

Inventory is priced at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or market. The cost of govemmental fund-type inventories are recorded as
expenditures when purchased.

Prepaid Items

Cash paymenis benefiting future periods have been recorded as prepaid items. They will be reflected as expenditures or expenses when
incurred in the subsequent year. Prepaid items in governmental funds are reserved for in fund balance, because prepaids are not
expendable, available financial resources.

Pue TofFrom Other Funds

During the course of operations, numerous ransactions occur between individual funds for goods provided or services rendered. These
receivables and payables are classified as "due from other funds" or "due to other funds" on the balance sheet.

Resfricted Assets

Certain proceeds of the Utility revenue bonds, as well as certain resources set aside for their repayment, are classified as restricted assets
on the balance sheet because their use is limited by applicable bond covenants. The "revenue bond construction” account is used fo
report those proceeds of revenue bond issuances that are restricted for use in construction. The "revenue bond special redemption
account is used to segregate resources accumulated for debt service payments over the next twelve months. The "revenue bond
depreciation” account is used to report resources set aside to meet unexpected contingencies or to fund asset renewals and replacements.

Other restricted assets include a "DNR Replacement Fund" which is required by the Wisconsin Deparfment of Natural Resources for

repairs and mainfenance on the Wastewater Utility plant. "Customer Deposits" are deposits made by the customers which are due to the
customers unless their bills are not paid.
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
DECEMBER 31, 2004

NOTE 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Continued

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which includes property, plant, and equipment, and infrastructure, are reported at cost or estimated historical cost if aciual
cost is not available. Contribuied assets are reported at estimated fair value at the time received. General infrastructure assets, such as
roads, bridges, curbs, gutters, streets, sidewatks and drainage, and lighting systems, acquired prior to January 1, 2004, are reported at
estimated historical cost using prior financial information. Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method. The cost of
normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset's lives are not capitalized.

Maijor capital outlays for capital assets of business-type activities are included as part of the capifalized value of the assets constructed.
Inferest expenses incurred during construction are capitalized as part of the additions fo capital assets.

Capitalization thresholds and the estimated useful lives are as follows:

Capital Asset Category C?I'?tl::gﬁﬁg " Estimated Useful Life
Infrastructure $ 1,000 20-70
Land - N/A
Improvements 1,000 15-40
Buildings 1,000 15-50
Machinery and equipment 1,000 340

Compensated Absences

Vacation pay accumulates and is fully vested. All vacations are based upon the employee's anniversary date of hire. For substantially all
City employees, vacation time earned and not taken at year-end must be used before their anniversary date in the subsequent year. Al
eamed vacation is paid to terminating employees if they give at least two weeks notice prior fo quitfing, or, employees whose service is
being terminated due to discharge, death, or retirement shall receive all earned vacation based upon actual months of service.

Sick leave can be accumulated up to a maximum of 120 days. All sick leave accumulated is cancelled when an employee leaves the
employ of the City. For one represented employee group the maximum accumulation is 60 days. These same represented employees
shall receive one additional day's pay for every month that they do not use sick leave after they've accumulated the maximum of 60 days.
Such payment shall be made on an annual basis.

Compensated absence expenditures and liabilities are recorded and adjusted to December 31st salariesfwages at the close of each fiscal
year.

Bond Premiums, Discounts, and Issuance Costs

In the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs are deferred
and amoriized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond
premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt.

In the fund financiai statements, governmental fund types recognize ond premiums and discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during
the cusrent period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums on debt issuance are reported as
other financing sources while discounts on debt issuance are reported as other financing uses. Issuance cosis, whether or not withheld
from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.
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NOTE 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Continued

Advance Refundings of Debt

In the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, gains and losses from advance refundings of debt resulting in
defeasance are deferred and amortized as a component of interest expense over the shorter of the remaining life of the old debt or the life
of the new debt using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable deferred amount,

Fund Balances

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance for amounts that are not availabe for
appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for specific purposes.

Net Assets

In the government-wide and proprietary fund financial staiements, equity is displayed in three components as follows:

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt - This consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, less the
outstanding balances of any bonds, morigages, notes or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or
improvement of those assets.

Restricted - This consists of net assets that are legally restricted by outside parties or by law through constitutional provisions or
enabling legislation. When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, generally it is the City's policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources when they are needed.

Unrestricted - This consists of net assets that do not meet the definition of “restricted” or “invested in capital assets, nef of related debt”.

State and Federal Aids

State general and categorical aids are recognized as revenue in the enfitlement year. Federal aids for reimbursable programs are
recognized as revenue in the year related program expenditures are incurred. Aids received prior to meeting revenue recognition criteria
are recorded as deferred revenue.

Interfund Transactions

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/bomrowing arrangemenis outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to
as either “due toffrom other funds”. Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental acfivities and business-type activities
are reported in the government-wide financial statements as “infernal balances”. Non exchange transactions which are not
borrowing/lending {will not be repaid) are recorded as transfers, and exchange fransactions are recorded as revenues and expenses,

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabiliies and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounis of revenue and expenditures/expenses
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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NOTE 2 - Cash and Investments

The City is required to invest its funds in accordance with Wisconsin Statutes. State statutes allow the following types of investments:

1.

Time deposits in any credit union, bank, savings bank, frust company, or savings and loan asscciation maturing in three years or
less.

Bonds or securities of any county, city, drainage district, technical college district, village, town, or school district of the state.

Bonds issued by any local exposition district, jocal professional baseball park district, or the University of Wisconsin Hospitals and
Clinics Authority.

Bonds or securities issued or guaranteed by the federal government or by a commission, board, or other instrumentality of the
federal government.

The local government invesiment pocl.

Any security maturing in seven years or less and having the highest or second highest rating category of a nationally recognized
rating agency.

Repurchase agreements with public depositories, if the agreement is secured by federal bonds or securities.

Securities of open-end management investment companies or investment trusts {mutual funds) if the portfolio is limited fo {a)
bonds and securities issued by the federal government or a commission, board, or other instrumentality of the federal govermment,
(b} bonds that are guaranteed as to principal and interest by the federal government or & commission, board, or other
instrumentality of the federal govemment, and (c) repurchase agreements that are fully collateralized by these bonds or securities.

Any bonds or securities issued under the authority of the municipality, whether the bonds or securities create a general
municipality fiability or a liability of the property owners of the municipality for special improvements, and may sell or hypothecate
these bonds or securities.

No significant violations of these restrictions occurred during the year.

The City's cash and investments are categorized below to give an indication of the level of risk assumed by the entity at year end.

Category 1:  Includes deposits that are insured, registered or for which the collateral securities are held by the City or its agent in the

City's name. This includes FDIC or equivalent insurance coverage. This category also includes investments in U.S.
government securities.

Category 2. Includes uninsured and unregistered deposits for which the collateral securities are held by the dealer's trust department

or agent in the City's name.

Category 3. - Includes alf other uninsured and uncollateralized cash and investments. These deposits may be guaranteed by the

Wisconsin State Deposit Guarantee Fund. This coverage is provided for up to $400,000 per depository, but is not
certain due to the limited size of the fund.
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NOTE 2 - Cash and Investments - Continued

The difference between the cash deposits bank balance and carrying value is due to outstanding checks and/or depasits in transit. Due to
large property tax collections in January and at the end of December, the City's uncollateralized cash deposits are typically at their highest
at those times. The City had no significant type of cash and investments during the year not included below.

Cash
DEPOSITORY BALANCES BY CATEGORY CARRYING
DEPOSITORY 1 2 3 TOTAL AMOUNT
Community Bank 3 200000 $ 4943588 % - § 5143588 § 3484465
M&l 160,000 14,673 - 174 673 172,246
Total Cash Deposits ) 360,000 § 4958261 § - § 5318261 $§ 3,606,711
Other cash 18,212
Total Cash, December 31, 2004 $ 3674923
investments
FAIR CARRYING
TYPE OF INVESTMENT VALUE AMOUNT
Federal Home Loan Consolidation Bonds $ 5175000 $ 5,167,792
State of Wisconsin Investment Pool § 12,375,054 12,380,190
American Transmissicn Ce., LLC § 2350193 2,350,193
Other ) 24.000 24,000
Total Investments, December 31, 2004 $ 19922175
Total Cash Deposits And Investments, December 31, 2004 § 23,597,008

Restricted cash and investments on December 31, 2004, consisted of $3,743,372 resfricied for mortgage revenue bond requirements.

Fair {Market) value of Investments — Investments are reported at fair value. At December 31, 2004, the fair value of the City's
investments approximated original cost, therefore no fair value adjusiments were necessary.

Determining Fair Value ~ Fair value of the City's investments are determined as follows:
1) Investments with stated interest rates (savings accounts, CD’s, repos) are stated at cost.
2) U.S. Treasury billsinotes are stated as amortized cost, and
3) State of Wisconsin Local Government investment Pool fair value is determined by the Pool's Investment board based on
published market quotations.

Investment Pool Information - Participation in the Staie of Wisconsin Local Government Investment Pool is voluntary. The Pool's
regulatory oversight is provided by state statutes and its investment board. The fair value of the City's posifion in the Pool is the same as
the value of the Pool shares. At December 31, 2004, the Peol's fair value was 99.9585 percent of book value.

Other Investment - The Electric Utility has invested in American Transmission Company, LLC {ATC). ATC is an electric power group
consisting of 28 Wisconsin Electric ufilities. The Ufility's initial investment gives the Utility approximately a .5% interestin ATC. This
investment is carried on the Utility's bocks at cost plus undistributed earnings. For the 2004 year-end the Utility received cash distributions
totaling $308,322. The Utility’s total earnings for 2004 were $385,402. Separate financial information for ATC may be obtained by writing
to American Transmission Company, P.0.Box 47, Waukesha, Wl 53187-0047.

Income Allocation - investment income is allocated to the fund that owns the investment.
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NOTE 3 - Property Taxes

Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property in December when the tax roll is certified. Taxes are tevied in December and
payable in two instaliments on January 31 and July 31, or payable in full on January 31. Special assessments, charges, and personal
property taxes are payable in full on January 31. The City bills and collects its own property taxes and also taxes for the State, County,
Technical College, and Public Schools until February 1, at which time alf uncollected reai estate taxes are tumed over to the respective
counties for collection. Collection of the taxes and remittance of them to the appropriate entities are accounted for in the Tax Agency Fund.
City property tax revenue is recognized in the year they are levied for and available for use. The 2004 tax roll (levied for 2005) has been set
up as & receivable and offset by the amounts due to other governmental units and deferred income tax revenue for the Gity's portion.
Advance tax collections are offset against the receivable.

NOTE 4 - Rehabilitation Loans

The City has outstanding Community Development Block Grant {CDBG) loans receivable with various businesses and homeowners.
These loans are originally made from grant proceeds. The loan agreements provide for various repayment options, including instaliment
payments and payment in full upon transfer of the property secured by the loans. When the loans are repaid, the funds become the
property of the Cify and are resfricted for future rehabilitation loan projects. The loan activity for the year was as follows:

Balance Payments & Balance
1/1/04 Additions Foraclosures 1231104
Community Development Block
Grant Program $ 305245  § /8 0§ 25180  § 280,423
Residential Revolving Loan 160,784 26,079 5,307 181,556
TOTAL $ 466029 § 26437 § 30,487 461,879

NOTE 5 - Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2004, was as follows:

BALANCES BALANCES
1104 ADDITIONS RETIREMENTS 12131104
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES .
Capital assets not being depreciated.
Land 3 7611825 ¢ 15319 % 9847 % 7,817,097
Totak capital assets not being depreciated $ 7611825 § 15319 § 9847 3 7,617,097
Capifal assefs being depreciated
Buildings $ 15589886 § 251,766 § 12218 § 15,829,433
Infrastructure 43423717 3,266,092 1,352,643 45,337,166
Improvements other than buildings 1,442,286 292,330 - 1,734,616
Machinery and equipment 12.853.042 710,367 44 448 13,518,961
Total capital assets being depreciated $ 73308831 % 4520555 % 1409310 § 76420176
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings $ 5809,021  § 36828 § 215537 % 5,961,780
[nfrastructure 10,012,960 1,062,549 276,988 10,798,521
Improvements other than buildings 330,946 68,687 - 389,633
Machinery and equipment 9,397 358 740,937 13,804 10,124 491
Total accumulated depreciaiion § 25550285 § 2240468 § 506329 § 27284425
Total capital assets being depreciated, net § 47758646 3 228008 § 902981 & 49135751
Government Activity Capital Assets, Net § 55370271 $ 2205405 § 912828 § 56,752,848
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NOTE 5 - Capital Assets - Continued

DECEMBER 31, 2004

Depreciation expense for governmental activities was charged to functions as follows:

General govemment

Public safety

Public works

Culture, recreation, and education
Conservation and development

Total

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITES

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress
Total capital assets not being depreciated

Capifal assets being depreciated
Buildings
Infrastructure/systems
Machinery and equipment
Total capital assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings
Infrastructure/systems
Machinery and equipment
Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets being depreciated, net

Business-Type Activity Capital Assets, Net

Depreciation expense for business-fype activities was charged to functions as follows:

Electric and Water
Wastewaier
Emergency Medical Services

Total

b 685,908
181,314
1,125,978
238,523
8,746
$ 2,240,469
BALANCES BALANCES

1/1/04 ADDITIONS RETIREMENTS 12/31/04
$ 833272 % 530,912 § 3122 % 1,333,062
1,163,570 842,375 748413 1,257,532
§ 1996842  § 1373287 § 779536 3§ 2,590,594
$ 27437756 % 107,963 § ~ § 27545718
69,654,366 3,664,511 480,590 72,848,687
7,116,389 776,685 160,554 7,732,520
$_ 104208510 & 4539559 § 621144 § 108126,926
$ 5151847  § 708527 § - $ 5,860,374
16,340,197 1,758,528 407,506 17,691,219
3.370,759 580,662 143,682 3,807,739
3§ 24862803 § 3.047.717 % 551188 § 27,359,332
§ 79345707 § 1,491,842 69956 & 80767593
$ 81342549 § 2.,865,1 29 § 849491 § _ 83,358,187
$ 1,975,042
1,041,505
31,170
$ 3,047,717
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NOTE 6 ~ LEASES

Operating Lease — The Electric and Water Utility has entered into five 25-year noncancellable operating leases with Chicago and
Northwestem Transportation Company. These leases contained a one time charge totaling $16,050. An amount of $642 is expensed

annually to amortize these leases which expire in 2004.

Capital Lease - The City has entered into a 5-year capital lease agreement as lessee for financing the acquisition of a truck for its
Wastewater Utility. Future lease payments include interest at 3.99% per annum. This vehicle is included in Capital Assets of the
Enterprise Funds as Machinery and Equipment of $196,112 less Accumulated Depreciation of $55,565 at December 31, 2004.

Maturities of the capital lease obligation at December 31, 2004 is:

ENTERPRISE FUND LEASE
YEARS PRINCIPAL INTEREST
2005 $ 37,660 3 4,691
2006 39,162 3,188
2007 40,725 1,625
§ 117547 § 9,504
NOTE 7 - Long-Term Obligations
Details of the City's long-term obligations are set forth below.
Summary of Long-Term Obligations
AMOUNTS
BALANCES BALANCES DUE WiTHIN
11104 ADDITIONS PAYMENTS 12/31/04 ONE YEAR
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
General obligation debt
State Trust Fund Loans 3 1,982,889 § - % 1,982,889 § - § -
Bonds payable 7,799,179 3,905,000 1,578,789 10,125,390 706,300
Notes payable 15,567,345 - 2,212,162 13,355,183 2,252,367
Other long-term obligations '
Vacation pay and comp time 257,856 229,699 214,350 273,206 225,000

Total Governmental Activities  § 25607269 §$ 4134694 § 5,588,190

For the governmentat activities, compensated absences are generally liquidated by the general fund.

$ 23753778 $ 3,183,667

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
General Obligation Bonds $ 810,820 $ - § 11,209 § 798611 § 13,700
IMortgage Revenue Bonds 26,295 117 - 1,644 444 24,850,673 1,695,032

Total Business-Type Activities § 27105937 § - § 1,655,653 § 25450284 $ 1,708,732
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NOTE 7 - Long-Term Obligations - Continued

General Obligation Debt

All general obligation debt is secured by the full faith and credit and unlimited taxing powers of the City. The general obligation debt is

expected to be repaid with general property taxes, and special assessments. General obligation debt at December 31, 2004, is comprised
of the following issues:

DATES OF BALANCE
|SSUE DESCRIPTICN RATES (%) MATURITY 12131104
Bonds Payable
5-93 400-5.35 4-05 $ 10,000
7-G7 4.875-530 6-17 75,000
1298 5.15-6.50 10-18 975,000
501 5.50 - 6.85 321 760,000
1-03 2.00-4.05 4-16 2,050,000
3-03 5.13-5.70 12-22 3,210,000
504 1.40 - 4.10 4-17 3,175,000
5-04 3.50-5.50 4-15 730,000
Notes Payable _
10-95 7.25-7.95 4-05 50,000
4-96 4.45-455 4-05 275,000
12-96 9.00 1-07 5,183
7-97 4.50 - 4.625 8-07 855,000
4-98 3.60-4.50 408 515,000
4-99 3.90-4.00 4-09 1,285,000
12-99 4.40-5.10 4-09 720,000
3-00 5.20-525 310 2,070,000
5-01 3.70-4.50 311 2,130,000
502 3.00-4.25 312 3,330,000
1-03 2.00-3.60 312 2,120.000
Total General Obligation Debt $ 24,280,183
Less General Obligation Debt to be repaid by Enterprise Funds (799,611)
TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS GENERAL OBLIGATION DEBT § 23480572
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NOTE 7 - Long-Term Obligations - Continued

Enterprise Fund Debt

Enterprise Fund debt is expected to be repaid with Enterprige Fund revenue. The mortgage revenug bonds are expected to be repaid with
electric, water and wastewater revenue. Enterprise Fund debt at December 31, 2004, is comprised of the following issues:

' DATES OF BALANCE
ISSUE DESCRIPTION RATES (%} MATURITY 12/31/04
Mortgage Revenue Bonds
10-93 40-55 12-13 $ 3,890,000
3-98 2.761 517 2,441,476
9-98 2761 5-18 16,154,197
8-02 30-435 6-13 840,000
503 2.00-3.50 5-13 1,325,000
General Obligation Bonds
3-03 5.13-5.70 12-22 799,611
TOTAL ENTERPRISE DEBT § 25450284

General Obligation Debt Limit Caiculation

The 2004 equalized valuation of the City as certified by the Wisconsin Department of Revenue is $1,133,407,900. The legal debt limit and
margin of indebtedness as of December 31, 2004 in accordance with Section 67.03(1)(b) of the Wisconsin Statutes follows:

Debt limit (5% of $1,133,407,900) $ 56,670,395
Applicable long-term debt {24,280,183)
Amount avai!_able in debt service fund

3411

Margin Of Indebtedness $ 32393623

Maturities of Long-Term Obligations

Maturities of the long-term debt to maturity, at December 31, 2004, are;

GENERAL OBLIGATION DEBT ENTERPRISE FUND DEET

YEARS PRINCIPAL INTEREST PRINCIPAL. INTEREST
2005 $ 20958666 $ 1,011,085 § 1718225 § 806,890
2006 2,982,644 820,231 1,770,381 752,356
2007 2,886,544 709,212 1,835,879 694,904
2008 2,548,826 602,376 1,901,012 633,925
2009-2010 2,446,336 500,908 1,972,044 569,630
2010-2014 6,421,857 1,424,330 9,811,490 1,791,423
2016-2019 2,356,044 544,387 6,190,906 444 202
2020-2024 879,656 97,077 250,346 29,390
TOTAL $ 23480573 $ 5709604 § 25450283 § 5722720
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NOTE 8 - Conduit Debf Obligations

From time to time, the City has issued industrial revenue bonds to provide financial assistance to private-sector entities for the acquisition
and construction of industrial and commercial facilities deemed to be in the public interest. The bonds are secured by the properiy
financed and are payable solely from debt payment receipts on the underlying mortgage loans. Upon repayment of the bonds, ownership
of the acquired facilities iransfers to the private-sector entity served by the bond issuance. Neither the City, the State, nor any political
subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liabilities in the
accompanying financial statements.

As of December 31, 2004, there were five series of industrial revenue bonds outstanding, with an aggregate principal amount payable of
$12,745,000. '

NOTE 9 - Prior Year Defeasance of Debt

The City issued $1,320,000 of genera! obligation refunding bonds to advance refund $1,280,000 of general obligation corporate purpose
bonds, resulting in a reduction of future debt service payments by $107,877 and an economic gain of $74,745.

The City placed the proceeds of new bonds in an irrevocable trust to provide for all fusture debt service payments en the old bonds.
Accordingly, the frust account assets and the liability for the defeased bonds are not included in the City's financial statements. At
December 31, 2004, $1,280,000 of bonds outstanding are considered defeased.

NOTE 10 - Defined Benefit Pension Plans

All eligible City of Marshfield employees participate in the Wisconsin Retirement System (WRS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined
benefit public employee retirement system (PERS). All permanent employees expected to work over 600 hours a year are eligible to
participate in the WRS. Covered employees in the General category are required by statute to contribute 5.6 percent of their salary (2.6
percent for Elected Officials, 4.5 percent for Protective Occupations with Social Security, and 3.2 percent for Protective Occupations
without Social Security) to the plan. Employers may make these confributions to the plan on behalf of employees. Employers are required
to contribute an actuarially determined amount necessary to fund the remaining projected cost of future benefits.

The payroll for City of Marshfield employees covered by the WRS for the year ended December 31, 2004, was $10,748,908, the employer’s
total payroll was $11,498,396, The total required contribution for the year ended December 31, 2004, was $1,408,186 which consisted of
$573,170 or 8.12 percent of payrolt from the employer and $536,016 or 4.99 percent of payroll from employees. Total contributions for the
years ending December 31, 2003 and 2002, were $1,328,037 and $1,383,504 respectively, equal to the required contributions for each
year.

Employees who refire at or after age 65 (62 for Elected Officials and 55 for Protective Occupation employees) are entifled to receive a
retirement benefit. Employees may retire at age 55 (50 for Protecfive Qccupation employees) and receive actuarially reduced benefits,
The factors influencing the benefit are: (1) final average earnings, (2) years of creditable service, and (3) a formula factor. Final average
earings is the average of the employee’s three highest years’ earnings. Employees terminating covered employment before becorning
eligibie for a retirement benefit may withdraw their contributions and, by doing so, forfeit all rights fo any subsequent benefit. For
employees beginning participation on or after January 1, 1990, and no longer actively employed on or after April 24, 1998, creditable
service in each of five years is required for eligibiliy for a refirement annuity. Participants employed prior to 1990 and on or after April 24,
1998, are immediately vested. '

The WRS also provides death and disability benefits for employees. Eligibility and the amount of all benefits are determined under

Chapter 40 of Wisconsin Statutes. The WRS issues an annual financial report that may be obtained by writing to the Department of
Employee Trust Funds, P.O. Box 7931, Madison, Wl 53707-7931.
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NOTE 11 - Post-Employment Benefits Other Than Pension Benefits

in addition to the pension benefits provided to employees through the Wisconsin Retirement Fund, the City provides the foliowing post-
employment benefits:

Upon termination of a non-represented employee who has worked at least 20 years for the City and has accepted to receive an annuity or
disability from the Wisconsin Retirement System, the City will deposit the equivalent dollar value of the employee’s accumulated unused
sick leave balance, up to a maximum of 350 hours, into the employee's Post Employment Health Plan. Unused sick leave balances can
only be utilized for medical insurance premiums. Each non-represented employee currently makes an annual contribution of $500 on a
pre-tax basis to his/her own Post Employment Health Plan. At the employees discretion, employee contributions are invested in various
investment instruments offered by the plan administrator. The accumulated balancs of an employee’s contribution to the plan can be
utilized for any future medical expenses andfor medical insurance by the former employee.

The estimated future Yiability for current employees is undeterminable and is not recognized in the General Long-Term Obligation Account
Group. The City currently pays 1.0% of wages on non-represented employees into a liability account to fund the future obligations of the
City for this plan. The City was not required to make a payment from the Post Employment Health Plan during the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2004. As of December 31, 2004, the City has $245,979 accumulated for payments that may be required in the future.

NOTE 12 - Interfund Receivables, Payables, and Transfers

Individual fund interfund receivable and payabie balances at December 31, 2004, are as follows:
FUND DUETC DUE FROM
General Fund $ 4,545,358 $ 82,456

Other Governmental Funds
Special Revenue Funds

Taxi System - 5,079
Capital Projects Funds
Street Construction - 553
Urban Development - 16,178
Storm Sewer Construction - 40,067
Water Main Construction - 20,674
TID#3 - 24,721
TID #4 - 2,031,041
TID #5 - 1,556,409
TID #6 - 33328
TID &7 - 752
Enferprise Funds
Electric and Water Utility 2,597,749 3,915,024
Wastewater Utility 614453 34,444

Internal Service Fund

Vehicles and Equipment 4,405 1,241
7,761,965 7,761,965

Balances resulted from the fiming differences between the dates that (1) interfund goods and services are provided or reimbursable
expenditures oceur, {2) transactions are recorded in the accounting system, (3) payments between funds are made, (4) and funds

overdraw their share of pooled cash or when there are transactions between funds where one fund does not participate in the City's pooled
cash.
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NOTE 12 - Interfund Receivahles, Payables, and Transfers - Confinued

Individual §und operating transfers during 2004 are as follows:

FUND TRANSFERS IN TRANSFERS OUT
General Fund $ 857,401 $ 85,000
Debt Service Fund
State Trust Fund Loans 92,642 -
Long-term Notes : 1,272,261 -

Other Governmental Funds
Special Revenue Funds

Room Tax - 145,491
Convention and Visiters Bureau 135,491 -
Community Development Block Grant - 25,180
Community Rehab Revolving Loans - o
Revolving Loan 25,180 150,000

Utility Dividend 100,000 120,000
East Industrial Park Improverment -

Capital Projects Funds

Urban Development - 100,000
Sanitary Sewer Construction - 72,859
Parks and Recreation Capital Projects 192,121 -
TID#3 - 22,442
TID #2 - 70,200
TID #4 - 117,710
TID #6 - 84,058
TID#5 120,000 615,495
City Hall Remodefing 85,000 -
Enterprise Funds
Electric and Water Utility - 781,632
Wastewater Utility - 507,121
Permanent Fund

Perpetual Fund -

2910

$ 2,880,006 $ 2,880,096

Transfers are used to (1) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires collection from to the fund that statute or budget
required to expend them. (2) move receipis restricted to debt service from the funds collecting the receipts to the debt service fund as debt

service payments become due, and (3) use unrestricted revenues collected in the general fund to finance various programs accounted for
in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations.
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
DECEMBER 31, 2004

NOTE 13 — Fund Equity

Reservations

Governmental fund balances are reserved for special revenue funds {specific purposes and long-term receivables), debt service funds
{debt retirement), capital project funds (debt covenants and projects), and other activifies (perpetual care and subsequent budgets}.

Deficits
The following individual funds had deficits at December 31, 2004:

Capital Project Funds Storm Sewer Construction $ 59,710
Water Main Construction 66,461
T.L.D. #4 (Downtown Improvements) 2,079,683
T.ED. #5 (Mill Greek) 1,611,908
T.1.D. #6 (Figi) 33,326
T.1.D. #7 (Yellowstone Industrial Park) 752

The deficits in the Tax Incremental Finance Districts (T.1.D.’s) are expected to be funded through future tax increments, and the remaining
deficits will be funded by future revenues.

Prior Period Adjustment

During 2004, the City noted that accrued interest payable was not recorded for a debt issue in the Wastewater Enterprise Fund. The
adjustment increases intetest payable and decreases net assets by $97,648 from the amounts previously reported.

NOTE 14 - Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to forts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to
employees; and natural disasters. The City manages these risks through the purchase of various forms of commercial insurance. Certain
of the commercial insurance policies have established deductible amounts whereby the City would be responsible for the portion of claims,
losses and damages under the deductible limits. All funds participate in the coverages provided by the commercial insurance carriers.
Each fund would be responsible for its' share of losses either below the deductible amounts or for losses exceeding the coverage limits of
the commercial policies.

There were no significant reductions in insurance coverages from the prior year. There wete no settiements that exceeded insurance
coverages in any of the last three years.

NOTE 15 - Joint Ventures

Marshfield Fairgrounds Commission - The Marshfield Fairgrounds Commission is a joint venture between the Common Council of the
City of Marshfield and the Wood County Board of Supervisors for the improvement, maintenance, repair and operation of the Marshfield
Fairgrounds. The Commission Board consists of six members: three aldermen from the City of Marshfield who are appointed by the mayor
with approval of the council, and three county board supervisers who are appointed by the chairman of the the Wood County Board with
approval of the county board. The Fairgrounds Commission has the full, complete and exclusive jurisdiction of the fairgrounds. The City of
Marshfield is to provide the necessary funds for the maintenance of the land, exclusive of the buildings and similar structures, while Wood
County is providing funds for the construction, improvement, repair and maintenance of the buildings located on the Marshfield
Fairgrounds, other than such properties owned by third parties. Any buildings or structures constructed upon the fairgrounds by the
Commission become the property of the City of Marshfield. Accordingly, the real estate and related buildings are capitalized in the
governmental activities’ capital assets. Complete separate financial statements for the Fairgrounds Commission may be obtained at the
Finance Department, City of Marshfield, 630 S. Central Avenue, Marshfield, W1 54449
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
DECEMBER 31, 2004

NOTE 15 - Joint Ventures - Continued

University Extension Center Commission - The University Extension Center Commission is a joint venture between the Common
Councit of the City of Marshfield and the Wood County Beard of Supervisors for the purchase of the site and construction of said center,
and the care, custody, maintenance, improvement and repair of the lands and buildings during its operation as a University Extension
Center. The Commission Board consists of six members: three aldermen of the City of Marshfield whe are appointed by the mayor with
approval of the council, and three county board supervisors who are appeinted by the chairman of the Wood County Board with approval
of the county board. Before September of every year, the Commission submits to the Marshfield Common Council and the Wood County
Board a budget indicating the amount needed from each governing body to defray the costs of maintenance, care, custody, repair and
improvement of the buiidings an premises of the University of Wisconsin - Marshfield/Wood County for the ensuing year. Each municipal
unit has & 50% share of the venture, and accordingly, the City's 50% share is capitalized in the governmental activities’ capital assets.
Complete separate financial statements for the University Extension Center Commission may be obtained at the Office of the Finance
Department, 630 S. Central Avenue, Marshfield, W 54449,

NOTE 16 — Contingencies and Commitments

Legal Contingencies

The City participates in a number of intergovernmental grant programs, which have various requirements, and are subject to audit by the
awarding agencies. Such audits may result in reimbursements of funds advanced or disallowance of program expenditures. The amount,
if any, of grant funds which may be disallowed by the grantor at future dates cannot be determined.

There are several lawsuits pending in which the City is involved. The City's attorneys estimate the potential claims resulting from litigation
against the City that are not covered by insurance would not materially affect the financial statements of the City.

NOTE 17 —Subsequent Events
In April 2005, the City issued official statements for two debt issues, with a May sale date. $3,045,000 of general obligation corporate

purpose bonds for the City's 2005 capital projects and $1,740,000 of Sewerage System Revenue Bonds for the Wastewater Utility 2004
and 2005 capital projects.
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
GENERAL FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

VARIANGCE WITH
FINAL BUDGET
BUDGETED AMOUNTS ACTUAL FAVORABLE
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUE
Taxes $ 7.304,328 § 7,394,328 § 7,381,627 § {12,701)
Special assessments 485,000 485,000 430,340 (54,660)
[ntergovernmental revenues 7,136,491 7,136,491 7,058,261 (78,230)
Licenses and permits 150,300 150,300 192,450 £2,150
Fines, forfeits and penalties 147,000 147,000 115,939 (31,061)
Public charges for services 663,085 663,085 678,004 14919
Other revenue 792,975 795,688 633,605 {166,083)
TOTAL REVENUES 3 16,769,173 § 16775892 § 16,490,226 § {285,666)
EXPENDITURES
Current
General government $ 2647898 § 2532241 § 2,359,388 § 172,853
Public safety 7,299,622 7,315,154 7,143,411 171,743
Public works 5,048,551 5,048,551 4,579,859 468,692
Health and human services 140,344 140,344 132,291 8,053
Culture, recreation and education 2,657,051 2,661,041 2,548,830 112,211
Conservation and development 460,172 460,172 429,738 30,434
Capital outiay 362,435 374,283 569,261 (194.978)
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 18,616,073 § 18531786 § 17,762,778 § 769,008
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES $ (1.846,894) §  (1,755,894) § (1,272,552) § 183,342
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfer from Enterprise Fund ' $ 775,933 % 775933 § 781,632 § 5,699
Operating transfers in .- 72,859 72,859 --
Operating transfers out (85,000) (85,0000 .-
Operating transfer-nonexpendable trust - 2,400 2910 {510)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 3 775933 § 766,192 3 772000 § 6.209
EXCESS OF REVENUE AND OTHER SQURCES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES $ (1,070,961 $ {989,702) $ (500,151 $ 489,551
FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 7,006,517 7,006,517 7,006,517
FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR § 5935556 § 6016815 % 6,506,366 3§ 489 551
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
ON BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING AND CONTROL
DECEMBER 31, 2004

General Policies - The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements:

Annual budgets, as required by state statutes, are adopted on a basis consistent with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles for all
governmental funds except those noted later (those funds for which multi-year project budgets are approved). Appropriations lapse at
year-end except those separately ideniified as designated for subsequent years' expenditures.

In August of each year, all agencies of the City submit requests for appropriations to the City Administrator so that a budget may be
prepared. Prior {o Cclober 15, the City Administrator submits {o the Comman Council a proposed operating budget, including capital
expenditures, for the fiscal year commencing January 1. The budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them. A
public hearing is held in the Common Council chamber to obtain taxpayer comments. Prior to December 1, the budget is legally adopted
by the Common Council through the passage of a resclution.

The adopted budget is prepared by fund, function and sub-function (departments, activities or projects) level. The City's department or
division heads may make fransfers of appropriations within a sub-function upon approval of their respective commissions, boards or
committees. Transfers of appropriations between sub-function require the approval of the Common Council. The legal level of budgetary
control is the sub-function level. Expenditures cannot legally exceed appropriations at this level without two-thirds Common Council
approval to amend the budget. The Common Council properly authorized all supplemental appropriaticns during the year, totaling $6,715.

Although there are adopied budgets for the enterprise funds and the internal service fund, budget to actual data is not shown since there is
no requirement under U.S. generally accepted accounting principles to present budget to actual comparisons for enterprise funds and
internal service funds as part of the general purpose financial statements, even if annual budgets are legally adopted for these funds.

Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management contral device during the year for the General Fund, the Special Revenue
Funds, the Debt Service Funds and the Capital Projects Funds. The Economic Development Special Revenue Fund, Residential
Revolving Loan Special Revenue Fund, Commercial Interest Subsidy Special Revenue Fund, and the East Industrial Park Improvement
Special Revenue Fund had no budgeted expenditures since effective confrok is achieved through alterative procedures. The capital
project funds are multi-year projects and the associated expenditures and revenues are budgeted only during the initial year of the projects
although annual auditing fees and transfers may be budgeted on an ongoing basis. Subsequent year expenditures for multi-year projects
are achieved through ufilization of the remaining fund balances,

Encumbrances - Encumbrance accounting is not used.
Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations - For the year ended December 31, 2004, expenditures exceeded budgeted amounts for

capital outlay in the general fund by $111,338, and for principal and interest in the debi service fund by $3,094,131 and $186,547,

respeciively. These over expenditures were funded by available fund balance in the general fund and greater than anticipated revenues in
the debt service fund. :
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General Fund

The general fund is used to account for resources traditionally associated with government which are not required legally or
by sound financial management to be accounted for in another fund.

Debt Service Fund

¢+ Long-Term Notes — to accumulaie monies for payment of all long-term notes and bonds except for those notes to be
paid by Proprietary Fand user fees. Property taxes are levied to finance the debt service.

e State Trust Fund Loan — to accumulate monies for payment of all state trust fund loans. Property taxes, including
those on the Tax Incremental Districts #2 and #3, are levied to finance the debt service.

e  (eneral Obligation Refunding Bonds — to accumulate monies for payment of the refunding issues. Property taxes are
levied to finance the debt service.




Taxes

Property

Sales and use

Payment in lieu of taxes
Interest and penalties on taxes
TOTAL

Special Assessments

Intergovernmental revenues

Federal grants

State shared revenues

State grants

State payments

Granis from local governments
TOTAL

Licenses and Permits

Liquor and malt beverage license
Nonbuiness license

Building permits

Zoning permits and fees

TOTAL

Fines, Forfeits and Penalties
Law and ordinance violations

Public Charges for Services

General government

Public safety

Transporiation

Sanitation and utilities

Health

Human services

Culture, recreation and education

Conservation and development

QOther charges for services
TOTAL

CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN

GENERAL FUND
DETAILED SCHEDULE OF REVENUES
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

BUDGET AMOUNTS ACTUAL

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS
$ 6,850,285 § 6,859,885 § 6,850,094
140 140 128
533,438 533,438 530,595
865 865 g10
$ 7394378 § 7394328 § 7,381,627
$ 485,000 § 485,000 § 430,340
$ - § -3 5,397
5,312,424 5,312,424 5,260,125
1,441,733 1,441,733 1,436,728
105,164 105,164 99,298
277,170 277,370 256,713
3 7.136,491 § 7136491 § 7,058 261
$ 34,500 $ 34,500 § 34,796
8,600 8,600 11,130
100,000 100,000 141,627
7,200 7,200 4 897
$ 150,300 § 150,300 § 192,450
$ 147,000 § 147,000 § 115,939
3 25,125 § 25125 § 29,335
17,725 17,725 19,506
36,300 36,300 55,322
1,200 1,200 6,698
90,908 90,908 96,617
731 731 1,057
296,797 296,797 255,936
1,025 1,025 215
1,300 1,300 1,367
$ [YARAER) LYARNAR 466,073

{Centinued on Page 55)
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Intergovernmental charges for services
State
Other local governments
Local departments
TOTAL

Other
Interest
Rent
Donations
Sale of other equipment and property
{Other miscellaneous revenues
TOTAL

TOTAL REVENUES

CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN

(GENERAL FUND

DETAILED SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, Continued

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

BUDGET AMOUNTS ACTUAL

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS
$ 5900 § 5900 § 5659
98,600 98,600 120,349
87,474 87.474 85,923
$ 191,974 § 191,974 § 211,931
$ 510,815 § 510815 § 336,238
261,822 261,822 264,938
3,338 10,051 11,225
17,000 17,000 21,100
- - 103
$ 792,975 § 799,688 § 633,605
$ 16,769,179 § 16,775,892 $ 16,450,226

-55.




General Government
Legislative
Legal
General administration
Financial administration
General buildings and plant
Other general government

TOTAL

Public Safety
Law enforcement
Fire protection
Inspection
Emergency communications
Disaster control
TOTAL

Public Works

Administration for highway and strests

Transportation cost pools
Highway and street maintenance
Road related facilities
Other transportation
Sanitation

TOTAL

Health and Human Services
Cemetary
Aging
TOTAL

Culture, Recreation and Education
Culture
Parks
Recreation programs and events
Recreation facilities
Zoo
Education
TOTAL

CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
GENERAL FUND

DETAILED SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

BUDGET AMOUNTS AGTUAL

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS
$ 71,837 § 71,837 § 71,543
168,345 168,345 165,078
1,029,036 1,037,590 984,746
952,763 797,320 701,724
280,117 304,372 275,778
145,800 152,777 160,519
$ 2,647,898 § 2,532,241 § 2,353,388
3 3,665,502 § 3,665,502 § 3,620,853
2,871,854 2,887,386 2,801,593
279,314 279,314 273,378
468,423 468,423 439,022
14,529 14,529 8,565
$ 7.299,622 § 7,315,154 § 7143411
$ 547,293 § 547,293 § 560,285
' 69,429 69,429 57,31
3,377,207 3,377,207 2,977,536
322,413 322,13 257,669
131,789 131,789 133,459
600,420 600,420 583,539
8 5,048,551 § 5,048,551 § 4,579,859
$ 133,423 § 133,423 3 125,373
6921 8,921 6.918
$ 140,344 § 140,344 § 132,291
$ 1,239,212 % 1,237,212 § 1,228,362
583,146 583,636 551,263
455,538 455,536 379,339
145,002 145,002 144,800
202,380 208,380 213,820
31,275 N.275 31,246
) 2,657,051 § 2,661,041 § 2,548,830

(Continued on Page 57)
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Conservation and Development
Resource conservation
Economic development
Qther conservation and development
TOTAL

Capital Outlay
TOTAL

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
GENERAL FUND

DETAILED SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES, Continued

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

BUDGET AMOUNTS ACTUAL

ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS
$ 164,387 § 164,387 § 128,694
16,138 16,138 24739
279,647 279,647 276,305
$ 460,172 3 460,172 § 423,738
$ 362,435 § 374,283 § 569,261
$ 362,435 § 374,283 § 569,261
$ 18,822,899 § 18,726,764 § 17,762,778
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
DEBT SERVICE FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

VARIANCE WITH
FINAL BUDGET
BUBGETED AMOUNTS ACTUAL FAVORABLE
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (UNFAYORABLE)
REVENUE
Taxes 3 907,100 § 907,100 % 907,100 §
TOTAL REVENUES 3 507.100_% 907,100 % 907,100 §
EXPENDITURES
Current
Principal retirement $ 2,642,305 § 2,642,305 § 4311821 §  (1,669,516)
Interest and fiscal charges 1,085,268 1,085,268 1,126,650 (41,382)
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 3727573 § 3727573 § 5438471 $  (1,710.898)

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES  § (282047) 8 (2820473) § (453137 (1.710.898)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Proceeds of long-term debt $ - § - § 1,763,332 § 1,763,332
Proceeds of refunding bonds - 1,320,000 1,320,000
Transfer from Enterprise Fund 797,261 475,000 475,000 -
Operating transfers in 708,137 885,903 889,903 --
Payment to refunding bond escrow agent -- (1,320,000) (1.320,000)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 3 1,505,398 § 1,364,903 § 3128235 § 1,763,332
EXCESS OF REVENUE AND OTHER SOURCES QVER

(UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES $ (13150758 (1,455,570) $ (1,403,138) § 52,434

FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,406,547 1,406,547 1,406,547
FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR $ 91,472 § (49,023) § 3411 § 52,434
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NONMAJOR
GOVERNMENTAL
FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds

Special revenue funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally restricted to expenditure for particular
purposes.

Capital Project Funds

Capital project funds are used to account for the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities other than those
financed by proprietary funds and trust funds.

Pei'manent Fund

Permanent funds are used to report resourced that are legally restricted to the extent that only earnings, not principal, may be
used for purposes that support the reporting government’s programs

*  Cemetery Perpetual Care Fund — to account for the accumulation of resources to be used for the perpetunal care of the
City’s cemetery. The principal amount of the monies received are maintained intact and invested. Investment earnings
are receipted in the General Fund and used to offset perpetual care costs.




CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2004

PERMANENT TOTAL
FUND NONMAJIQR
SPECIAL CAPITAL PERPETUAL GOVERNMENTAL
REVENUE PROIECTS CARE FUNDS
ASSETS
Cash and equivalents 3 2372871 % 1,369,613 $ 155,768 $ 3,898,252
Receivables
Taxes -- - --
Accounts 71,559 777,264 848,823
Loans 1,115,815 -- 1,115,915
Other 3,182 68,971 72,153
Prepaids 4,568 -- 4 563
Due from other governments 73.001 69,395 142,396
TOTAL ASSETS § 3,641,096 § 2285243 § 155,768 $ 5,082,107
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 47627 $ 31,024 § -3 128,651
Due to
Other funds 5,079 3,723,721 3,728,800
Other governments - 35,520 35,520
Deferred revenues 108,555 1.073,155 - 1,181,710
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 3 161,261 § 4913420 $ --§ 5,074,681
FUND BALANCES
Reserved for
Special revenue funds $ 2,225,849 § - 3 -3 2,225,849
Capital projects -- 1,085,192 - 1,085,192
Other activities - nonexpendable trust -- 155,768 155,768
Unreserved
Designated 1,253,986 138,469 1,362,455
Undesignated - {3.851,838) - (3,851.838)
TOTAL FUND BALANCES $ 3,479.835 § (2628177 § 155,768 § 1,007,426
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 3 3,641,096 § 2285243 § 155,768 § 6,082,107
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ASSETS
Cash and equivalents
Receivables
Taxes
Loans
Other
Prepaids
Due from other governments

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable

Due to other funds

Deferred revenues
TOTAL LIABILITIES

FUND BALANCES
Reserved
Unreserved:
Designated
Undesignated
TOTAL LIABILITIES

CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
DETAIL OF NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2004

CONVENTION ~ COMMUNITY COMMUNITY
ROOM & VISITORS DEVELOPMENT ECONOMIC REHAB
TAX BUREAU BLOCK DEVELOPMENT REVOLVING
FUND FUND GRANT FUND LOAN
$ 145024 § 168,715 $ -3 883,218 $ 3,531
- 36,214
980,423 653,936
4,568
$ 145024 § 173,283 § 280423 $ 1,573,368 § 3,531
$ 7,905 § -3 -3 143 $
- - - 50,000
$ 7,905 § - 3 -3 50,143 §
$ - $ -3 280,423$ 1,523,225 % 3,531
137,119 173,283
$ 1371198 173,283 § 2804238 1523.225% 3,531

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES  § 145,024 § 173,283 § 280.423 § 1573368 § 3,531

{Continued on page 61)
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
DETAIL OF NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2004

RESIDENTIAL LAW EAST TOTAL
REVOLVING REVOLYING  ENFORCEMENT TAXE UTIEITY INDUSTRIAL CABLE BUSINESS SPECIAL
LOAN LOAN RESTRICTED SYSTEM DIVIDEND PARK TELEVISION IMPROVEMENT REVENLE
FUND FUND REVENUE FUND FUND IMPROVEMENT FUND DISTRICT FUNDS

85676 934163 11,763 $ ~$ 602729  11814$ 2459798 136768 2372871

- - 35,345 71,559

89,617 91,939 . 1,115,915

. . 197 2,685 3,182

- 4,568

73.001 73,001

175293 $ 185355 § 11,7638 73001 %  602729$ 1191448 246476 § 51,706 $ 3,641,096

- % -3 ~$ 148148 -3 -3 24,765 § -3 47,627

- - - 5,079 - . . : 5,079

- - 7.070 . . . . 51,485 108,555

- $ - § 7070$ 19,893 .- $ - $ 24,765 § 51485 § 161,261

175293 § 185,355 § 4693$ 53,108 % -3 -8 -8 218 2,225809

602,729 119,144 221,711 1,253,986

175293 8 185355 § 46938 531088  602.729% 1191443 221711 $ 218 3479835

175293 § 185,355 $ 11,7638 730018 6027208 119144 § 246,476 $ 51,706 $__ 3.641,006
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
DETAIL OF NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2004

SANITARY PARKS & REC WATER
STREET URBAN STORM SEWER CAPITAL MAIN
CONSTRUCTION  DEVELOPMENT SEWER CONSTR AIRPORT PROJECTS CONSTR
FUND FUND CONSTR QUTLAY QUTLAY FUND OUTLAY
ASSETS
Cash and equivalents - 779,608 $ -3 - § - $ 20,445 § 268,803
Receivables
Taxes 237,953 -- 51,598 - - - 114,261
Other 32,857 . - -- -- --
Due from other governments -- 63,385 - -- -- -- --
TOTAL ASSETS § 10504183 69,395 § 51,598 % --§ 20,445 § 268,803 § 114,261
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES h
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable § 41670 § 8605 - 3 - % -3 1,477 § 2,290
Due to
Other funds 553 16,178 40,067 -- -- -- 20,674
Other governments 520 -- -- - - - -
Deferred revenues 328,537 -- .241 - -- - 157,758
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 3 374280 3 247838 111,308 § -3 -% 14778 180,722
FUND BALANCES
Reserved $ 676,138 § 44612 % - 3 -3 20,445 § 267326
Unreserved
Designated -- -- - - --
Undesignated - - (59,710 -- (66,461
TOTAL FUND BALANCES 3 676,138 § 46128 (59710) § - § 20,445 § 267326 % (BG46TY
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES § 1050418 % 69,395 § 51,598 % -3 20445 § 268,803 § 114,261
(Continued on page 63)
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

DETAIL OF NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2004

T.LD. &3 T.LD. &4 TID.#45 TID.#7 oty uw TOTAL
TOWER TID.#2 DOWNTOWN TID.#6 MILL YELLOWSTONE HALL BUILDING/ CAPITAL
HALL PURDY PUB FiGl CREEK BUSINESS REMODLING REMODLING PROJECTS
FUND FUND IMPROVEMENT PROJECT PARKWAY FUND FUND FUNB FUNDS
$ -3 57,433 3 - 3§ -3 -3 -3 148,770 § 56,554 § 1,369,613
12,066 72,400 127,777 82,784 78,425 777,264
36,114 - -- - 88,971
- 69,395
§ 48180 § 169833 % 127,777 § § 82,784 § - 8 225195 § 56,554 § 2,285,243
$ -3 -3 -3 -3 23,982 § - % $ -3 81,024
24721 2,031,041 33,326 1,556,409 752 - 3,723,712
- - - -- -- 35,000 35,520
16.660 §0,961 176,419 - 114,299 -- 108,280 -- 1,073,155
3 41,321 % 99,961 3 2,207.460 § 33326 § 1694690 3 752 § 108,280 § 35000 § 4913420
3 6,799 § 85,872 § - % -3 - % 3 3 -3 1,086,192
- - - - 116,915 21,554 138,469
- - {2,079,683) (33.326) (1,611,906} (752 - (3.851.838)
3 6799 § 688723 (2079683 § (33.326) § (1,611,906). % (752).3 116915 § 21,554 § (2.628.177)
b 48180 § 169,833 § 127,777 § 3 82,784 § -3 225195 3 56.554 § 2,285 243
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

REVENUE
Taxes
Intergovernmental revenues
Licenses and permits
Public charges for services
Other revenue
TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Current
General government
Puhlic works
Culture, recreation and education
Conservation and development
Capital outlay
Interest and fiscal charges
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
. Proceeds of long-term debt
Transfer from Enterprise Fund
Operating transfers in
Operating transfers out
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SQURCES (USES)

EXCESS OF REVENUE AND OTHER SOURCES QVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES

FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR

PERMANENT TOTAL
FUND NONMAJOR

SPECIAL CAPITAL PERPETUAL  GOVERNMENTAL

REVENUE PROJECTS CARE FUNDS
$ 289137 § 1,022.964 $ S $ 1,312,101
293,787 655,380 949,167
157,334 - 157,334
17,773 34,800 6,425 88,998
105,632 119,551 2910 228,093
$ 893663 § 1832695 $ 9335 § 2735693
$ 74,225 $ -3 -3 74,995
317,218 - 317,218
193,445 - 193,445
151,201 643 151,844
152,525 2,819,838 3,002,363
- 13.912 13,912
$ 888614 § 2861393 § . $ 3753007
$ 5019 §  (1.031,698) $ 9335 §  (1017.314)
$ -3 811,278 § -3 811,278
- 32,121 32,121
260,671 365,000 - 625,671
(440.671) __ (1,062.762) (2910) ____(1,506,343)
$ (180,000 § 1456373 (2.910) $ (37.273)
$  (I7A%51)$ (886,061 § 6425 §  (1,054,587)
3,654,786 (1,742,116) 149,343 2,062,013
$ 3479835 $  (2628177)$ 155768 $  1.007.426
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
DETAIL OF NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

CONVENTION COMMUNITY COMMUNITY
RCOM & VISITORS  DEVELOPMENT  ECONOWIC REHAB
TAX BUREAU BLOCK DEVELOPMENT  REVOLVING
FUND FUND GRANT _ FUND LOAN
REVENUE
" Taxes $ 239137 § - 3 -3 50,000 §
[ntergovernmental revenues -- --
Licenses and permits
Public charges for services - - . -- --
Other revenue - 62.583 358 41,766 18
TOTAL REVENUES $§ 239137 § 62,583 3 358 § 91,766 $ 18
EXPENDITURES
"~ Gurrent
General government $ -3 -3 - $ - 3%
Public works - -
Culture, recreation and education 4,443 189,002 -- --
Conservation and development .- -- 103,616 800
Capital outlay 103,458 -- -- - -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 167901 § 189,002 § -~ 3 103616 % 800
| EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES § 131236 § (i26419) § 38 & (1180 § (7827
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfers in $ - 3 135491 § -5 -3
Operating transfers out (145.491) -- {25.180) --
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) § 45491 % 135491 § (25,180) § - §
EXCESS OF REVENUE AND OTHER SOURCES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES $ (14,255 % 9,072 § (24822% (11,850 § (782)
FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 151,374 164,211 305,245 1,535,075 413
FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR § 137,119 § 173.283 3 280423 § 1523225 § 3.531
{Continued on page 66)
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
DETAIL OF NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

RESIDENTIAL LAW EAST TOTAL
REVOLVING ~ REVOLVING  ENFORCEMENT TAXI UTILITY INDUSTRIAL CABLE BUSINESS SPECIAL
LOAN LOAN RESTRICTED SYSTEM BIVIDEND PARK TELEVISION  IMPROVEMENT REVENUE
FUND FUND REVENUE FUND FUND IMPROVEMENT FUND DISTRICT FUNDS
$ - $ -3 -3 - 3 -3 - % -3 -3 289,137
- - 293,787 - - - 293,787
- 157,334 - 157,334
- - &,773 47,7173
- 850 - - - - - 257 105,632
$ -- § 650 $ --§ 293787 § - 3 - 3 157,334 § 43,030 $ 893,663
$ - $ -3 - § - § - % - § 74,225 § - § 74,225
- - - 317,218 . - -- - 317,218
- - = 193,445
191 - 46,504 151,201
-- -- -- - - - 49,067 - 152,525
$ - $ 1918 -8 317218 § - - 3 123,292 § 46,594 $§ 888,614
3 - % 459°% R S VAR XD R - % -3 3408278 1436 % 5049
$ -3 25,180 § - $ - § 100,000 § - $ -3 -3 260,671
- - -- - (150,000) (120,000) - (440,671)
$ -3 25,180 § -8 - % (50,000) §  (120.000) $ - $ - 3 (180.000) -
$ - $ 25,639 § -$ (2343138 (50,000)8  (120,000) $ 34,042 § 1,436 § (174,951)
175,293 159,716 4,633 76,539 652,729 239,144 187,669 (1.215) 3,664,786
§ 175293% 185355 % 4633 % 53108 § 602729 § 119,144 § 21,711 § 221 § 3.479.835
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
DETAIL OF NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

SANITARY PARKS & REC
STREET URBAN STORM FIRE SEWER CAPITAL
CONSTRUCTION  DEVELOPMENT SEWER PROTECTION CONSTR AIRPORT PROJECTS
FUND FUND CONSTR FUND QUTLAY QUTLAY FUND
REVENUE
Taxes 3 519,919 § - § 32,343 -3 -3 -3 65,000
Intergovernmental revenues 39,569 254,467 -- 159,000 .- -- 112,125
Public charges for services 34,800 - - --
Other revenue 350 -- -- -- - - 948
TOTAL REVENUES by HOA638 § 254,467 § 32313 § 159,000 § - 8§ - 3 178,073
EXPENDITURES
Current
Conservation and development b - 3 - % - % -% -3 -3 --
Capital outlay 1,069,218 89,268 80,472 159,060 1,208,369
Interest and fiscal charges 13,812 -- -- - - -- -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 3 1.083,130 § 89.268 § 80472 § 158,000 § - % -8 1,208,365
EXCESS OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES by (483.497) 3 165,199 § (48.129) § -$ - 3 -3 {1,030,296)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Procesds of long-term debt |3 776,278 § - § - § -3 8 -3 -
- 322

Transfer from Enterprise Fund
Operating transfers in -- -- -- -- - 160,000
Operating transfers out -- (100,000) - -- (72,859) --
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
* SOURCES (USES) b 776278 §  (100,000) § - § -3 (G289 % -3 192121
EXCESS OF REVENUE AND
OTHER SOURCES OVER {UNDER)
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES $ 287,786 % 65193 § (48129 § % (7289 % -3 (838,175
FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 388,352 (20,587) (11,581) - 72,859 20,445 1,105,501
FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR $ 676,138 $ 44612 §  (59.710) § -- 8 - % 20445 $ 267 326
{Confirued on page 68)
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN

DETAIL. OF NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

WATER T.ID.NO. 3 T.LD.NQ. 5 T.ID.NO. 7 CITY uw TOTAL
MAIN TOWER T.1D.NC. 2 T.LD.NO. 2 T1D.NO.6 MIEL YELLOWSTONE HALL BUILDING/ CAPITAL
CONSTR HALL PURDY COWNTOWN FIG! CREEK BUSINESS REMODLING REMODLING PROJECTS
OUTLAY FUND FUND IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT PARKWAY FUND FUND FUND FUNDS
$ UM% 17,290 % 104143 § 45008 § 3766 § 78,239 $ ~ 30000 $ 1,022,964
- 10 12 21,955 2340 65,902 . - 655,380
- - - - 34,800
18,804 36,114 - . 33,335 i . 119,551
$ 76064 $ 53414 § 104135 § 166950 $ 6106 § 177476 _$ - $ 300008 1,832,695
3 $ 138 § 139 § -3 138§ 28 § -3 - - 843
2,820 146,852 228 14,305 78,766 2,819,838
. - . . .. - . 13.912
$ $ 138 § 139§ 2820 § 138§ 147.120 § 288 14805 % 787656 3 2864393
$ 76084 %  B3E S 104016 $ 164139 § 5968 § 30356 % (08¢ 15195 S (J8766)§  (1,031,698)
3 -~ 8 -3 -3 § - 3 -3 - 35000 3 811,278
. . . : - ' - 32,121
- - - 120,000 85,000 365,000
(22842) _ (70.200) (U7,710) ___ (64,05) (515,495) - (1,062.762)
$ - $ (M) (0ANOS (NI (8406} (495.495) § .3 (8500008 350008 14563
$ 76060 § 3084 33816 S 16429 $  (S3088)§  (46513)$ (228§ 100195 § (43766} % (886.060)
(142525) _ (24.035) _ 35,0% (2.126112) 24752 (1.146.767) (528) 18,720 65,320 (1742.116)
$  (66.461)8 6799 $ 69872 $ (2079.683)% (33.326)§ (1611006)S (5D S 116915 8 21550 S (2628177
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SPECIAL
REVENUE
FUNDS

Room Tax Fund — to account for the collection of room taxes remitted to the City by hotel/motel owners and
-expenditures made for-upkeep of City’s parks.- i
Convention and Visiters Bureau Fund — to account for room taxes recewed by the Bureau and expendltures made for
promotion of the City.

Community Development Block Grant Program Fund — to account for financial activity associated with state funding
under the block grant program.

Economic Develepment Fund — to account for funds utilized for economic development loans and expenditures made
to promote economic development.

Business Improvement District Fund — to account for collecting and remitting assessments to the Main Street Program.
Residential Revelving Loan Fund — to account for monies provided by a Community Development Block Grant to
finance interest free loans to City residents. The principal must be maintained intact and interest earnings must also be
used to finance the loans.

Commercial Interest Subsidy Fund — to account for grants made to local businesses to reduce the rate of interest being
charped on their commercial loans. The grants are made on behalf of the business and placed in an escrow account at
local financial institutions. Interest earned on these deposits prior to their withdrawal for the monthly interest payment is
recorded in this Fund and can be used only for additional commercial interest subsidy grants.

Law Enforcement Restricted Revenue Fund — to account for grants, contributions and donations received from other
governments, businesses and individuals to be utilized for specific law enforcement purposes.

Taxi System Fund - to account for grant subsidies received for operation of the local taxi system and expenditures
made for the taxi system.

Utility Dividend Fund — to account for dividends received from City utilities and expenditure of those funds.

East Industrial Park Improvement Fund — to account for sale of land in the East Indusirial Park. Monies received are
used to make improvements to the industrial park.




CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
ROOM TAX SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

VARIANGE
BUDGETED AMOUNTS ACTUAL FAVORABLE
GRIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS {UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUE
Taxes
Public accomodation taxes $ 253,513 § 253,513 § 239,137 % (14,376}
TOTAL REVENUES 3 253513 § 253,513 § 235,137 § {14,376)
EXPENDITURES
Current
Culture, recreation and education :
Parks $ -3 -3 4443 § (4,443)
Capital outlay
Parks 99.847 93.847 103,458 3611
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 99,847 § 99,847 § 107,901 § (8,054)
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES § 153,666 3 153.666 § 131,236 § 22,430
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Qperating transfers out $  (153.666) 3 (153,668) $ (145.491) § 8,175
EXCESS OF REVENUE AND OTHER SOURCES QVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES $ -5 -3 (14,255 § 14,255
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 4 151,374 151,374 151,374
FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR $ 151,374 § 151.374 § 137,119 § 14,255
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
CONVENTION AND VISITORS BUREAU SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

VARIANCE
BUDGETED AMOUNTS ACTUAL FAVORABLE
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS {UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUE
Miscellaneous
Interest 3 69000 $ 69.000 § 62,583 § {6,417
TOTAL REVENUES 3 69,000 § 69,000 § 62583 § (6.47)
EXPENDITURES
Current
Culture, recraation and education
Culture $ 212,568 § 212,568 § 189,002 3 23 566
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 3 212,568 $ 212,568 $ 189,002 § 23,566
EXCESS OF REVENUES QVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES $ (143568 § (143,568) § (126,419) § (17.149)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Operating transfers in 3 143,666 § 143,666 $ 135,491 § (8,175)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 3 143,666 § 143,666 § 135491 § (8,175)
EXCESS OF REVENUE AND OTHER SOURCES OVER

{UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES $ 98 3 93 § 9,072 § {8,974)
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 164,211 164,211 164.211
FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR § 164,309 § 164.309 § 173,283 § (8.974)
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED PECEMBER 31, 2004

REVENUE
Miscellaneous

Miscellaneous
TOTAL REVENUES

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES
OTHER FENANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfers out

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SCURCES (USES)

EXCESS OF REVENUE AND OTHER SOQURCES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND QTHER USES

FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR

VARIANCE

BUDGET AMOUNTS ACTUAL FAVORABLE
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS  _(UNFAVORABLE)
- § - $ 358 § 358
-3 - $ 358 § 358
- 3§ =3 358 § (358)
- § -3 (25180) $ (25,180)
=4 - $ (25,180) § (25.180)
-3 -3 (24,822) § 24,822

305.245 305,245 305,245

305,245 § 305,245 § 280423 § 24,822
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

REVENUES
Taxes
General property taxes
Miscellaneous
Interest
TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Current
Conservation and development
Economic develepment
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfers in

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

EXCESS OF REVENUE AND OTHER SOURCES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES

FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR

VARIANCE
BUDGET AMQUNTS ACTUAL FAVORABLE
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (UNFAVORABLE)
50,000 § 50,000 $ 50,000 %
46,760 46,760 41,766 (4,994)
96,760 3 96,760 $ 91,766 $ (4.994)
106,083 § 106,083 § 103,616 $ 2,467
106,083 § 106,083 § 103616 § 2,467
(9.323) § (9,323) § (11,850 § (2,527}
124198 § - % - 3
124,198 § - 3 - 3
114,875 § (9,323) § (11,850) § (2,521)
1,635,075 1,635,075 1,535075
1.649950 § 1525752 § 1,523,225 § (2,527)
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN

COMMUNITY REHAB REVOLVING LOAN SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

REVENUES
MiscellaneoLis
Interest
TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Current
Conservation and development
Economic development
TOTAL EXPENDITURES
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER (UNDERY EXPENDITURES
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR

VARIANCE
BUDGET AMOUNTS ACTUAL FAVORABLE
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (UNFAVORABLE})
258 25 % 18 § (N
2538 25§ 18 3 )
- 3§ - § 800 § (800)
- § -3 800§ (800)
25 % 25% (782 § (807)
4313 4313 4313
4,338 § 4338 § 3.531 § (807)
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN

RESIDENTIAL REVOLVING LOAN SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

REVENUES
Miscellaneous
Inferest
TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Current
Conservation and development
Economic development
TOTAL EXPENDITURES
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR

VARIANCE
BUDGET AMOUNTS ACTUAL FAVORABLE
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (UNFAVORABLE)
$ 3 - $
$ -3 -3
$ -3 -
$ -3 -3
-3 $ -3
175,263 175,293 175,293
175,203 $ 175.293 § 175,293 § -
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
REVOLVING LOAN SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

VARIANCE
BUDGET AMOUNTS ACTUAL FAVORABLE
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOLINTS (UNFAVORABLEY
REVENUES
Miscellaneous

Interest $ 450 3 450 § 650 3 200

TOTAL REVENUES $ 450 § 450 3 850 § 200
EXPENDITURES
Current

Conservation and development
Economic development $ ' 3508 350§ 191§ 159
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 3 350 % 350 § 1913 159
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES  § 100 § 1003 159 § {359)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Operating transfers in $ --$ - $ 25,180 § 25,180
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) ) - § -3 25180 § 25,180
EXCESS OF REVENUE AND OTHER SOURCES OVER

(UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES 3 100 § 100§ 25,639 § 25,539
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 159,716 159,716 159,716

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR $ 159,816 § 159,816 § 185,355 § 25,539
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
LAW ENFORCEMENT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

REVENUES
Intergovernmental
Federal shared revenue
TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Current
Public safety
Law enforcement
TOTAL EXPENDITURES
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR

VARIANCE
BUDGET AMOUNTS ACTUAL FAVORABLE
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (UNFAVORABLE)
-3 S -3
-3 -8 -3
-3 -3 -3
S -3 - $
-8 -3 -3
4,693 4,693 4,693
4,693 $ 4,693 $ 1693 §
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
TAXI SYSTEM SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

VARIANCE
BUDGET AMOUNTS ACTUAL FAVORABLE
ORIGINAL FINAE AMOQUNTS {UNFAVORABLEY
REVENLUES :
Intergovernmental
State grants 3 313,233 § 313.233 3 293,787 § (19.446)
TOTAL REVENUES $ 313233 § 313.233 § - 293,787 § (19.446)
EXPENDITURES
Current
Conservation and development
Ecenomic development $ 295,678 § 295,678 $ 317,218 § (21,5403
Capital outlay
Automotive eguipment 23,000 23,000 - 23,000
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 3 318678 S 318,678 3 37218 3 1,460
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES  § (5,£45) § ' (5,445) $ (23,431 § (17,986)
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 76539 76,539 76,539
FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR § 71.094 § 71.094 § 53,108 $ (17,986)
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
UTILITY DBIVIDEND SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

VARIANCE
BUDGET AMQUNTS ACTUAL FAVORABLE
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (LUUNFAVORABLE)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfers in $ 100,000 § 100,000 $ 100,000 §
Operating transfers out (150,000 {150,000) {150,000
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) $ (50.000) § {50,000 3 (50,000 $
EXCESS OF REVENUE AND OTHER SOURCES OVER
(UNDERY EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES $ (50,000) $ (50,000) $ (50,0003 $
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 652,729 652,729 652,729
FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR 3 602,729 § 602,729 § 602,729 § --
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
CABLE TELEVISION SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

VARIANCE
BUDGETED AMOUNTS ACTUAL FAVORABLE
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUE
Licenses and permits
Cable franchise fees $ 117,865 $ 117,865 $ 157,334 § 39,469
TOTAL REVENUES § 117,865 $ 117,865 § 157334 § 39,469
EXPENDITURES
Current
General government
Cable television $ 80,250 § 80,250 § 74,225 % 6,025
Capital outlay
Cahle television 35,900 50,900 49 067 1,833
TOTAL EXPENDITURES b 116,150 § 131,150 § 123292 § 7.858
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENBITURES $ 1,715 % (13,285) § 34,042 § 47,321
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 187.669 187,669 187,669
FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR $ 189,384 § 174384 § 221,711 § 47,327
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN

BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

REVENUES
Public charges for services
Economic development
Miscellaneous
[nterest
TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Current
Conservation and development
Economic development
TOTAL EXPENDITURES
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR

VARIANCE

BUDGET AMOUNTS ACTUAL FAVORABLE
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (UNFAVORABLE}
46,980 §$ 46,980 § 47773 § 793
200 200 257 57
47,180 § 47,180 § 48,030 3 850
46,580 § 46980 $ 46,594 $ 386
46,980 § 46980 § 46,594 § 386
200 $ 200 % 1,436 § 1,236

(1.215) (1.215) (1.215)

{1.015) § (1.015) § 221 § 1,236

-81-




CAPITAL
PROJECT
FUNDS

Street Construction — to account for the financing and construction of street projects within the City. Financing is
provided by general obligation note proceeds, intergovernmental revenues, and property taxes.

Urban Development — to account for the financing and construction of miscellaneous urban development projects
within the City. Financing is provided by general obligation note proceeds, intergovernmental revenues, and property
taxes.

Storm Sewer Construction — to account for the costs of extending the storm sewer system within the City. Financing is
provided by general obligation note proceeds, intergovernmental revenues, and property taxes.

Fire Protection Qutlay — to account for the financing and construction of new fire protection equipment.

Sanitary Sewer Construction Outlay — to account for the financing and construction of sanitary sewer projects within
the City. Financing is provided by general obligation note proceeds and property taxes.

Airport Outlay — to account for the costs of capital improvements at the airport. Financing is provided by general
obligation note proceeds, intergovernmental revenues, and property taxes.

Parks & Recreation Capital Preject Fund — to account for funds designated for specific Parks & Recreation projects.
Financing is to be provided primarily through room tax proceeds, property taxes, and general obligation note proceeds.
Water Main Construction OQutlay — to account for the financing and construction of water main projects within the
City. Financing is provided by property taxes and general obligation note proceeds.

T.LD. #3 — to account for the City’s share of the costs pertinent to the redevelopment of the “old” City hall building into
a commercial and residential housing facility.

T.L.D. #2 — to account for the City’s share of the cost pertinent to the redevelopment of the Purdy School building into an
independent living senior housing facility.

T.L.D. #4 — to account for the City’s share of costs pertinent to revitalization of the downtown area.

T.1D. #6 — to account for the City’s share of infrastructure costs pertinent to the expansion of Figi’s, Inc., a local
distributor of mail order gifts. Financing is provided by general obligation note proceeds.

T.L.D. #5 - to account for the improvements to Mill Creek Business Park, Financing is provided by general obligation
note proceeds.

T.LD.#7 — to account for improvements to Yellowstone Business Park.

City Hall Plaza Remodeling — to account for the costs of remodeling the City Hall Plaza. Financing is provided by
general obligation note proceeds.

UW Building/Remodeling — to account for the City’s share of costs for the remodeling/expansion project at the UW
Marshfield/Wood County campus. Financing is provided by general obligation note proceeds.




CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
STREET CONSTRUCTION CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

VARIANCE
BUDGET AMOUNTS ACTUAL FAVORABLE
DRIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (UNFAVORABLE)Y
REVENUE
Taxes
General property $ 519,919 § 519919 $ 519,919 §
Intergovernmental
State grants -- -- 39,569 39,569

Public charges for services ,

Highway maintenance and construction fees 42,000 42,000 34,800 (7,200)

Miscellaneous

Interest -- -- 350 350
TOTAL REVENUES 3 561,919 § 561,919 % 594638 § (32.719)
EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay
Public works $ 1,276,911 $ 1,276,911 § 1,069,218 § 207,693
Debt service
Interest and fiscal charges 20,050 20,050 13,912 6,138
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 1,296,961 § 1,296,961 § 1,083,130 § 213,831
EXCESS OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES $ {735,042 § (735,042) § (488.492) $ 246,550
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Proceeds of Jong-term debt 3 770,000 § 770,000 $ 776,278 § 6,278
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) $ 770,000 $ 770,000 § 776278 $ 6,278
EXCESS OF REVENUE AND

OTHER SOURCES OVER (UNDER)

EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES $ 34958 § 34,958 3 287,786 § 252,828
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 388.352 388,352 388,352
FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR 3 423310 § 423,310 § 676,138 8 252,328
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
URBAN DEVELOPMENT CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

VARIANCE
BUDGET AMOUNTS ACTUAL FAVORABLE
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUE
intergovernmental
Economic development grants § - 3 - 3 254,467 § 254 467
TOTAL REVENUES 3 - 3 - 3 254 467 $ 254 467
EXPENDITURE_S
Capital outlay
Urban development b} 305,025 § 305,025 $ 89,268 § 215,757
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 3 305,025 3 305,025 $ 89,268 § 215,757
EXCESS OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES ) (305,025) § (305,025) $ 165,199 § 470,224
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfers out 3 {100,000} § (100,000) $ {100,000} §
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) $ (100,000) § (100,000} § (100,000) §
EXCESS OF REVENUE AND
OTHER SOURCES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES $ (405,025) § (205,025) $ 85,199 § 470,224
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR (20,587 (20,581 (20,587
FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR $ (425612) § (425.612) § 44612 § 470,224
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REVENUE
Taxes
General property
TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay
Public works
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR

CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN

STORM SEWER CONSTRUCTION CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

VARIANCE

BUDGET AMOUNTS ACTUAL FAVORABLE
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS  _(UNFAVORABLE)

3 32343 § 32343 3§ 32,343 §

$ 32,343 § 32343 § 32343 §

3 - 3 - 3 80472 $ (80.472)

$ - § - 3 80,472 § (80.472)

$ 32,343 § 32,343 § (48,129) $ (80,472)
(11,581) (11,581) (11.581)

$ 20,762 $ 20,762 $ (59,710) § (80.472)
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
_ SANITARY SEWER CONSTRUCTION CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

VARIANCE
BUDGET AMOUNTS ACTUAL FAVORABLE
ORIGINAL FENAL AMOUNTS (UNFAVORABLE)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Fund bhalance applied $ 72.85% § 72,859 § - 3 (72,859)
QOperating transfers out (72.859) (72.859) (72.859) -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) § - 3 - § (72.859) § {(72.859)
EXCESS OF REVENUE AND
OTHER SOURCES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES $ - 3 - $ (72,859) § (72,859)
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 72.859 72.859 72,859
FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR $ 72,859 % 72,859 8 - 3 (72.859)
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
AIRPORT OUTLAY CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

EXPENDITURES

Capital outlay

Public works
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Fund batance applied
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
EXCESS OF REVENUE AND
OTHER SOURCES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR

VARIANCE
BUDGET AMOUNTS ACTUAL FAVORABLE
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (UNFAVORABLE)
$ 5,000 $ 5000 $ - $ 5,000
$ 5,000 3 50003 -3 5,000
3 5,000 $ 5,000 § - 3§ {5,000)
3 5000 $ 5000 3 -- 3§ (5,000}
$ -3 -3 -3
20,445 20,445 20445
$ 20,445 § 20445 § 20,445 § --
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
PARKS / RECREATION CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

REVENUE

Taxes

General property
[ntergovernmental

State grants
Miscellaneous

Interest

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

Capital outlay

Parks outlay
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfer from Entarprise Fund
Operating transfers in
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

EXCESS OF REVENUE AND
OTHER SOURCES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR

VARIANCE
BUDGET AMOUNTS ACTUAL FAVORABLE
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS ___ _ (UNFAVORABLE)
65000 § 65,000 $ 65000 §
112,125 112,125
22,000 22,000 948 (21.052)
87,000 $ 87,000 $ 178073 $ (91,073)
1113400 $ 1113400 § 1208369 $ (94,969)
1113400 $ 1113400 $ 1208369 $ (94,969)
(1.026400)$  (1.026.400)$  (1,030.296) $ (3.89)
- § - § 32121 $ 32,121
160,000 160,000 160,000 ..
160,000 $ 160,000 § 192,121 § 32,121
(866,400) S (366,400)$  (833,175)$ 28,225
1,105,501 1,105,501 1,105,501
230101 § 239101 $ 267,326 S 28295
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REVENUE

Taxes

Other
TOTAL REVENUE

EXPENDITURES
Current
Conservation and development
Urban development
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR

CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN

WATER MAIN CONSTRUCTION CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

VARIANCE

BUDGET AMOUNTS ACTUAL FAVORABLE
ORIGINAL, FINAL AMOUNTS {UNFAVORABLE)
$ 21,260 § 271260 § 27,260 § -
-- - 48,804 (48.804)
$ 27.260 § 27,260 § 76,064 _$ (48.804)
$ 291,894 § 251,894 § - 3§ (291,894)
$ 291,894 § 291,894 § - § (291,894)
$ (264,634) § (264,634) § 76,064 § (340,698)

(142,525) (142,525) {(142,525)

h) (407.159) § (407,159) $ (66,461} $ (310,698)
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN

T.L.D. NO. 3 (TOWER HALL) CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

REVENUE
Taxes
General property
[ntergovernmental
State shared grants
Other revenue
TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Current
Conservation and development
Urban development
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

QOTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfers out
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
EXCESS OF REVENUE AND
OTHER SOURCES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR

VARIANCE
BUDGET AMOUNTS ACTUAL FAVORABLE
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS {UNFAVORABLE)
17936 § 17,936 $ 17,290 $ (646)
13 13 10 (3)
-- -- 36,114 36,114
17949 § 17949 § 53414 § (35465)
138 § i38 § 138 3
138§ 138 § 138 §
17811 § 17811 § 53.276 § (35.465)
(22,442) § (22,44 3 (22,84 §
(22,442) § (22,442) § (22,442) §
(4,631) § (4631 § 30,834 § 35,465
(24,035) (24.035) (24,035)
(28.666) $ (28.666) $ 6,799 § 35.465
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN

T.1.D. NO. 2 (PURDY SCHOOL) CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED BECEMBER 31, 2004

REVENUE
Taxes
General property
Intergovernmental
Other state shared taxes
TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Current
Conservation and development
Urban development
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfers out
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
EXCESS OF REVENUE AND
OTHER SOURCES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR

VARIANCE
BUDGET AMOUNTS ACTUAL FAVORABLE
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS {UNFAVORABLE)
114,398 § 114,398 § 104,143 § {10,255)
11 11 12 ]
114409 § 114409 § 104,155 § (10,254)
138 § 138 § 139 § 4]
138 § 138 § 139 3 )
114271 § 114271 § 104016 $ (10,255)
(70,200) § (70,200) § (70.200) §
(70.200) § (70,200) § (70,2003 §
44071 3 44,071 § 33816 § (10,255)
36,056 36,056 36,056
80.127 § 80,127 § 69,872 § (10,255)

-90 -




CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
T.LD. NO. 4 (DOWNTOWN IMPROVEMENTS) CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

VARIANCE
BUDGET AMOUNTS ACTUAL FAVORABLE
ORIGINAL FENAL AMIOLINTS (UNFAVORABLE}
REVENUE
Taxes
General property 3 109,169 $ 109,169 $ 145,004 § 35,335
Intergovernmental
Cther state shared taxes 22,783 22783 21,955 (828)
TOTAL REVENUES $ 131,952 § 131952 § 166,959 § 35.007
EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay
Conservation and development b} 228 § 228 § 2820 § (2,592)
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 3 228 3 228 § 2820 § (2.592)
EXCESS OF REVENUES
QVER (UUNDER) EXPENDITURES 3 131,724 § 131724 % 164139 § (32,415
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfers out ) (117,710 § 17.7100 § M7.710 $
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) b} 17710 § (117.710) § (1177100 $
EXCESS OF REVENUE AND
OTHER SOURCES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES $ 14014 § 14014 § 46,429 § 32,415
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR (2,126,112) (2,126,112 (2,126,112
FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR $ (21120988 (2.112,098) §  (2.079.683) § 32,415
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
T.L.D. NO. 6 (FIGI'S) CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

VARIANCE
BUDGET AMOUNTS ACTUAL FAVORABLE
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUE
Taxes
General property $ 9,361 § 9,361 § 3,766 § (5,595)
Intergovernmental
QOther state shared faxes 3,265 3,265 2,340 {925)
TOTAL REVENUES 3 12626 § 12626 § 6,106 (6,520)
EXPEMDITURES
Current
Conservation and development
Urban development 3 138 § 138 § 138 §
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 138 § 138 § 138 3§
EXCESS OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 3 12488 § 12488 § 5968 §$ (6,520
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfers out $ (64,056} § (64,058) § (84,058) §
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) $ {64.056) $ (64,056) § (64.056) 3
EXCESS OF REVENUE AND
OTHER SOURCES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES $ (51,568) § (51,568) § (58,088) $ (6,520}
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 24,762 24,762 24,762
FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR 3 (26,806) § (26,806) § (33.326) § (6.520)
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
T.1.D.NQ. 5 (MILL CREEK BUSINESS PARK) CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

VARIANCE
BUDGET AMOUNTS ACTUAL FAVORABLE
DRIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS {UNFAVORABLEY
REVENUE
Taxes
General property $ 98,405 § 98,405 $ 78,239 § (20,166)
~ Infergovernmental
QOther state shared revenues 6,000 6,000 65,902 59,902
Miscellaneous
Rent 100 100 33,335 33,235
TOTAL REVENUES $ 104,505 3§ 104,505 § 177476 § 72,871
EXPENDITURES
Current
Conservation and development
Urhan development 3 228 % 228 § 228 §
Capital outlay
Public works -- 120,000 146,892 (26,892)
Debt service
Interest and fiscal charges -- - - -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 228 § 120,228 § 147,120 % {26,852)
EXCESS OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES b} 104,277 § (15723) § 30,356 3 46,079
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfers in $ - 120,000 $ 120,000 $
Operating transfers out (615,495) (615.495) {615,435)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 3 (615495) § (495,495) § {495,495} $
EXCESS OF REVENUE AND
OTHER SOURCES QVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES $ (511,218) $ (511,218) § (465,139) § 46,079
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR (1,146,767) (1,146,767} (1,146,767)
FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR $ (1657985)% (1657985)% (1.611,906) $ 16,079
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
T.1.D. NO. 7 (YELLOWSTONE INDUSTRIAL PARK) CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

VARIANCE
BUDGET AMOUNTS ACTUAL FAVORABLE
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (UNFAVORABLE)
EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay
Conservation and development ] 228 3 228 3 208 §
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 3 228 § 228 § 228 §
EXCESS OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 3 (228) $ @9)s - (28
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR (524} {5243 {524)
FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR $ (752) § (752) § (752) §
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
CITY HALL REMODLING CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

REVENUE
Taxes

General property
TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay
General government
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES)
Operating transfers in

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

EXCESS OF REVENUE AND OTHER SOURCES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES

FUND BALANGE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR

VARIANGE
BUDGET AMOUNTS ACTUAL FAVORABLE
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (UINFAVORABLE)
3 30,000 § 30,000 % 30,000 §
3 30,000 § 30,000 § 30,000 §
$ 155,000 $ 240.000 § 14,305 § 225,195
$ 155,000 3 240,000 3 1£805 § 225,195
3 (125.000) § (210,000) § 15,195 § 225,195
$ - 3 85000 § 25,000 3
$ - 3 85000 § 85.000 §
$ {125,000) § {125,000) $ 100,195 § 295,195
16,720 16,720 16,720 _
$ (108,280) §  (108,280) § 116,915 $ 225,195
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN

UW BUILDING/REMODELING CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

REVENUE
Taxes

General property
TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Current
Conservation and development
UW Wood County campus
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER}) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds of long-term debt

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

EXCESS OF REVENUE AND OTHER SQURCES OVER
{UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES

FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR

VARIANCE
BUDGET AMOUNTS ACTUAL FAVORABLE
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS {UNFAVORABLE)
- $ - § -3
- - § -3
100,000 § 100,000 § 78766 § 21,234
100,000 $ 100,000 § 78766 § 21234
(100,000) § (100,000) § ( 78.756) $ 21,234
35000 § 35000 $ 35,000 §
35,000 § 35000 % 35,000 3%
(55,000 § (65,000) $ (43,766) $ 21,234
65,320 65.320 65,320
320 § 320 § 21,554 § 21,234
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NONMAJOR
ENTERPRISE
FUNDS

Emergency Medical Services {Ambulance) — to account for the provisions of EMS Service to the residents of the City
and surrounding contracting communities starting in 2002, All activities necessary to provide such services are
accounted for in this fund, including, but not limited to, adminisiration, operations, maintenance, financing and related
debt service.

Storm Water Utility— to account for the provisions of storm water services to the residents of the City. All activities
necessary to provide such services are accounted for in this fund, including, but not limited to, administration,
operations, maintenance, {inancing and related debt service.




CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash
Accounts receivable
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

NONCURRENT ASSETS
Capital assets, at cost

Less accumulated depreciation
Net capital assets

TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued salaries, wages and compensated absences
Current portion of long-term debt
Deferred revenues
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Long-term obligations
TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL LIABILITIES
FUND BALANCES
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Unrestricted

TOTAL FUND BALANCES

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

DECEMBER 31, 2004
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STORM EMERGENCY
WATER MEDICAL
UTILITY SERVICES TOTAL
154,505 § 72392 § 226,897
- 91,146 91,146
154,505 § 163,538 § 318,043
-3 651,819 § 651,819
- (414,119) (414119
-- 3 237,700 § 237,700
- $ 237700 § 237,700
154,505 § 401,238 § 555,743
45,15 % 19,595 § 65,310
- 6,829 6,829
1,645 1,645
- 12,650 12,650
45715 $ 40719 § 86,434
-3 94335 § 94,335
- 3 94,335 § 94,335
45715 § 135054 § 180,769
- § 237,700 3 237,700
108,790 28,484 137,274
108,790 § 266,184 $ 374,974
154,505 § 401,238 § 359,743




CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

STORM EMERGENCY
WATER MEDICAL
UTILITY SERVICES TOTAL
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services $ 50,669 § 807,081 $ 867,750
OPERATING EXPENSES
Operations 3 434166 3 677,072 § 1,161,238
General 75,860 - 75,860
Depreciation -- 31170 31370
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES $ 560,026 § 708,242 § 1,268,268
OPERATING INCOME $ {499.357) § 98,839 3 (400,518)
NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSE)
Taxes 3 667,478 $ - 3 667,478
Interest income - 77 77
Miscellaneous income 933 1,185 2,118
Interest and fiscal charges - (5,263) {5,263)
Other miscellaneous income -- (3,838) (3.838)
TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUE $ 668411 $ {7.839) § 860,572
CHANGE N NET ASSETS $ 169,054 § 91,000 § 260,054
MET ASSETS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR (60,264 175,184 114,920
NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR ' $ 108,790 § 266,184 § 374,974
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

EMERGENCY
STORM MEDICAL
WATER SERVICES TOTAL
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers and users $ 60669 § 819708 § 880,377
Payments to suppliers and vendors (548,336) (115,483) (663,819)
Payments to employees {236,143) (560,730 (796,873)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ (723810) $ 143495 § (580,315
CASH FLOWS FRCM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition and construction of fixed assets 3 - % (1361968) $  (136,196)
Interest paid - {5,263) (5,263)
Principal payments of GO refunding bonds - {1,345) {1,345)
Contributions received - 1,185 1,185
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets - 1,500 1,500
NET CASH USED IN CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES $ -5 (140119)  §  (140,119)
. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Taxes received $ g67478  § - § 667478
Interest received - 77 77
Proceeds from miscellaneous sales 933 - 933
NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES $ 668411 § 77§ 668488
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS $ (65399) § 3453 % (51,946)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 209,904 68,939 278,843
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR ] 154,505 § 72392 § 226897
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO
CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN} ACTIVITIES
Operating income (loss) $ (499,357) § 08,839 §  (400,518)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
net cash provided by operating activities
Depreciation charged to depreciation expense - 31,170 31,170
Changes in assets and liabilities
(Increase) decrease in assets '
Accounts receivable 457 574 12,627 470,201
Increase {decrease) in current liabilities
Accounts payable 37,519 8,750 46,269
Due fo other funds {62,088) - (62,068)
Other accrued expenses {667,478) {7,891) (675,369)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ (723,810) $ 143495 §  (580,315)

The accempanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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FIDUCIARY
FUNDS

Agency Funds

+  Payroll Deductions Fund — to account for the collection and payment of payroll deductions from and on behalf of city
employees.

¢  Performance Bonds Fund — to account for the collection of performance bonds from contractors providing services to
the City.

* Property Tax Fund — to account for the collection and payment to the State, County, and school districts of property
taxes billed and collected by the City on their behalf.

s  Sales Tax Fund — to account for the collection and payment of sales tax,




CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN

COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

AGENCY FUNDS
PAYROLL PERFORMANCE PROPERTY SALES
DEDUCTIONS BONDS TAX TAX TOTAL

ASSETS
Cash and equivalents 3 247312 % 1,470 § 4,257,401 § 111§ 4,507,294
Investments 13,800 -- 13,800
Taxes receivable -- - 11,162,055 11,162,055
Other receivables 13,850 -- 13,850

TOTAL ASSETS $ 261,162 § 15,270 § 15,419,456 § L1111 15696999
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ --$ 15,270 § 8,204 3 -3 23,474
Other accrued expenses 261,162 o - 261,162
Due to other governments -- -- 15,411,252 1IN 15,412,363

TOTAL LIABILITIES 3 261,162 § 152703 3541945 $ 1118 15,696,999
NET ASSETS
Restricted g -3 -3 - § -3

TOTAL NET ASSETS $ -3 -3 -3 %

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 261,162 § 15270 8 15419.456 § 11118  15.696.999
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Payroll Deductions
ASSETS
Cash
Receivables-Other
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Payroll Deductions

Performance Bonds
ASSETS
Cash and Investments

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable

Property Tax
ASSETS
Cash
Taxes Receivable
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Due to Other Governments
TOTAL LUABILITIES

State of Wisconsin
ASSETS
Cash

LIABILITIES
Due to Other Governmenis

TOTAL - ALL AGENCY FUNDS
ASSETS
Cash and investments
Taxes Receivable
Receivables-Other
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Payroll Deductions
Due to Other Governmenis
TOTAL LIABILITIES

CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS
AND LIABILITIES - ALL AGENCY FUNDS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

BALANCE BALANCE

111104 ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS 12131104
$ 217,311 $ 2,562,173 $ 2,522,172 247312
15,489 83,705 85,344 13,850
3 232,800 $ 2,635,878 $ 2,607,515 261,162
$ 232,800 $ 2,363,787 $ 2,335,425 261,162
$ 118,575 $ 107,833 3 200,238 15,270
$ 116,575 3 3,333 $ 104,638 15,270
3 4,396,855 $ 20,862,513 3 20,801,967 4,257 401
9,651,182 26,274912 24,664,039 11,162,055
3 13,948,037 $ 46,937 425 $ 45,466,006 15,419,456
$ 156,415 $ 20,130 § 27,341 8,204
13,932,622 15,411,252 13,932,622 15,411,262
$ 13,948,037 $ 15,431,382 $ 13,859,963 15,419,456
$ 656 $ 10,672 $ 10,217 1,111
$ 656 $ 10,672 $ 10,217 1,119
$ 4,731,397 $ 23,333,290 $ 23,543,594 4,521,004
9,651,182 26,274,912 24,664,038 11,162,055
15,489 83,705 85,344 13,850
$ 14,288,068 3 49,691,807 $ 48,292,977 15,696,999
§ 131,990 $ 23463 $ 131,980 23474
232,800 2,363,787 2,335,425 261,162
13,833,278 15,421,824 13,042,839 15,412,363
§ 14,298,068 $ 17,809,174 $ 16,410,243 15,596,998
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Hawleins, Ash, Baptie & Company, LLP

Certified Public Accountants 4 Management Consultants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Common Council
City of Marshfieid, Wisconsin

We have audited the financial statements of the City of Marshfield, Wisconsin ("City"), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2004, and
have issued our report thereon dated April 1, 2005. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in

the-United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States.

Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, requlations, contracts, and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct
and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

- Internal Controi Over Financial Reporting

In p]anmng and performing our audit, we considered the City's control over financial reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures
for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internat contro over financial
reporting. Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control
that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal -
conirof components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements in amounts that would be material in relation to the
financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing

their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal controi over financial reporting and its operanons that we consider fo
be material weaknesses.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Council and management of the City and is not intended to be, and should
-not be, used by anyone other than these spemf ied parties.

| M‘;""/‘M, &T}E,; £ Ca-uM, LL P

Marshfield, Wisconsin
April 1, 2005
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TABLE 6
CITY OF MARSHFIELD,WISCONSIN
PRINCIPAL TAXPAYERS
DECEMBER 31, 2004

2004 Percentage of
Assessed Total Assessed
Taxpayer Type of Business Valuation Valuation

Marshfield Clinic Healthcare $ 113,227,600 10.05%
Wal-Mart Development Retail Sales Development 22,430,880 1.98%
Badger Housing Apartment Complexes 12,992,760 1.15%
Marshfield DoorSystems Wood Doors 12,479,600 1.11%
Menards Development Home Improvement Retail 12,246,130 1.09%
Northway Mall Development Shopping Mall 10,988,460 0.98%
V & H Ford Auto / Heavy Truck Sales & Service 10,823,750 0.96%
Wick Building Systems Madular Homes, Building Materials 10,301,710 0.91%
Rainbow Development - Festival Food Sales, Office Products 9,263,200 0.82%
Green Roof Building Residential / Commercial Construction 8,505,370 0.75%
TOTALS 3 223,259,460 19.81%
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TABLEY
CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT BILLINGS AND COLLECTIONS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Current Year Collections

Current Current Percent of
Fiscal Year Assessments Prior Year Assessments  Total Outstanding
Year Billings (1) Due (2) Receipts Tax Roll Collections Collected Assessments {1)
1995 § 315,009 $ 208614 $ 193,137 % 176,336 80.69% $ 802,972
1996 30,784 176,336 67,120 156,595 75.79% 623,396
1997 279,831 140,638 110,937 156,594 88.80% 663,719
1998 1,244,992 178,166 344,310 145,453 103.43% 1,398.415
1999 41,795 214,467 148,574 163,871 91.98% 1,223,683
2000 525,927 186,559 505,011 201,756 94.07% 950,694
2001 800,160 229,677 356,868 172,269 92.34% 1,189,167
2002 415,878 291,736 448,444 346,600 150.91% 888,299
2003 385,241 266,340 313,222 139,742 47.90% 849,985
2004 335,211 237,674 265,834 197,567 74.18% 711,466

(1) Includes paving, street openings, sanitary sewers, water mains, storm sewers and sidewalks
(2} Assessments placed on prior year tax roll due in current year
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TABLE 8
CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
COMPUTATION OF LEGAL DEBT MARGIN
DECEMBER 31, 2004

Total equalized value $1,133,407,900

Legal debt margin:

Debt limitation-5 percent of total equalized value 56,670,395
Debt applicable to limitation:

Bonds 9,175,000

General obigation notes 15,105,183

Total debt applicable to limitation at December 31, 2004 24,280,183

Less amount available in debt service funds ' (3,411) (24,276,772)

Legal debt margin ' $ 32,393,623
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TABLE 11
CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN

COMPUTATION OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDED DEBT

DECEMBER 31, 2004

General Percentage
Obligation Applicable Amount
Debt to Applicable
Jurisdiction Qutstanding Government to Government
Direct:

City of Marshfield $ 24,276,772 100.00% § 24,276,772

QOverlapping:
Wood County 6,750,000 26.50% 1,788,750
Marathon County 6,732,243 1.00% 67,322
School District of Marshfield 1,055,000 £68.80% 725,840
Mid-State Technical College Disfrict #14 14,395,000 11.40% 1,641,030
Total Overlapping Debf 28,932,243 4,222,942
Total Direct and Overlapping Debt $ 53,209,015 $ 28,499,714
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TABLE 13

CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
DEMOGRAPHIC STATISTICS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Data Sources

(1) WI Dept. of Administration Population & Housing Estimates - www.doa.state.wi.us
(2) Marshfield School District - Public Schools only (as of 1/1 of subsequent year)

(3) W1 Dept. of Workforce Development - www.doa.state.wi.us/dwd
(4) 2000 Census - www.doa.state.wi.us/dhir/wisconsin/1605549675.pdf
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(2) (3)

Fiscal (1) School Unemployment
Year Paopulation Enrollment Rate
1995 19,889 4,343 3.1%
1996 19,942 4,264 2.1%
1997 19,991 4,282 3.8%
1998 19,984 4,253 3.8%
1999 19,969 4,142 3.1%
2000 19,900 4,084 3.3%
2001 18,887 4,110 3.6%
2002 18,908 4,038 4.3%
2003 18,861 4,060 6.1%
2004 19,012 3,955 5.9%
Education Level (Persons 25 years and over} (4) Number Percent
Less than 9th grade 938 7.33%
9th to 12th grade, no diploma 1,267 9.90%
High school graduate (includes equivalency) 4,430 34.60%
Some college, no degree 2,348 18.33%
Associate degree 1,122 8.76%
Bachelor's degree 1,680 13.12%
Graduate or professional degree 1,019 7.96%

12,802 100.00%
Per Capita Income - 2000 (4) $21,965
Median Age - 2000 (4) 38.7
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Date of Incorporation
Form of Government
Number of employees {including part-time)
Area in square miles

Name of Government facilities and services:
Miles of streets
Number of street lights
Culture and Recreation:
Community centers {Senior Center)
Parks
Park acreage
Swimming pools
Tennis/raquetball courts
outdoor-lighted
indoor tennis
racquetball
Fire Protection:
Number of stations
Number of fire personnel and officers
Number of city calls answered
Number of inspections conducted
Paolice Protection:
Number of stations
Number of police personnel and officers
Number of enforcement units
Number of Arrests / Citations / Warnings
Sewerage System:
Miles of sanitary sewers
Miles of storm sewers
Number of treatment plants
Number of service connections
Daily average treatment in gallons

TABLE 15
CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
MISCELLANEOQUS STATISTICS
DECEMBER 31, 2004

Maximum daily capacity of treatment plant in gallons

Water System:
Miles of water mains
Number of service connections
Number of fire hydrants
Daily average consumption in gallons
Maximum daily capacity of plant in galions

Facilities and services not included in the reporting entity:

Education:
Number of elementary schools
Number of secondary schocls
Number of technical colleges
Number of universities (limited 4 year)
Hospitals:
Nurnber of hospitals
Number of patient beds

- 119 -

Public
7

1
1
1

1883
Mayor/Council
554
13.4

135
1,408

1
19
380

34 (6 Officers)
212
2,186

1
54 (38 officers)
16

8,195

129.9

68.6

1

7,631
3,300,000
28,000,000

133.4
7,433

842
1,865,923
4,800,000

Private
7
3

524




